
 
O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d ,  L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
Ph: 847.883.8600 | Fax: 847.883.8608 | www. l i n co ln sh i re i l . gov  

 
AGENDA 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
Village Hall – Board Room 
Monday, January 28, 2019 

Following Regular Village Board Meeting 
 

Reasonable accommodations / auxiliary aids will be provided to enable persons with disabilities to effectively participate in any 
public meetings of the Board.  Please contact the Village Administrative Office (847.883.8600) 48 hours in advance if you need 

special accommodations to attend. The Committee of the Whole will not proceed past 10:30 p.m. unless there is a consensus of the 
majority of the Trustees to do so. Citizens wishing to address the Board on agenda items may speak when the agenda item is open, 

prior to Board discussion. 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
1.0 ROLL CALL  

    
2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2.1 Acceptance of the January 14, 2019 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes 
 
3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS  

3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use  
 3.11  Preliminary Evaluation of a Petition for a Text Amendment to Revise 

Hotel Parking Requirements for Dining Areas (Knight Bridge Pkwy, LLC – 
Home2 Hotel by Hilton – 350 Knightsbridge Parkway) 

 
 3.12 Consideration of Zoning Board Non-Recommendation Regarding Text 

Amendment to Single-Family Residential Bulk Regulations in Title 6, 
Chapters 5A (R1, R2 and R3 Single-Family Residence Districts) and 5B 
(R2A Single-Family Residence District) of the Lincolnshire Village Code 
(Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
3.2 Finance and Administration 
  
3.3 Public Works 

3.31 Consideration of a Request to Authorize Purchase of a John Deere 324G 
Skid Steer (Replacing Public Works Vehicle #320) via Sourcewell Joint 
Purchase Program from Westside Tractors, Wauconda, Illinois in an 
Amount not to Exceed $90,000 (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 

3.32 Consideration of Contract for the Replacement of the Eastside Reservoir 
Emergency Generator with Altorfer Power Systems, Elmhurst, Illinois in 
an Amount not to Exceed $160,866.92 (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 

3.33 Consideration of an Out of Village Water Service Request for 23436 Elm 
Road (Mr. and Mrs. Rizvi – 23436 Elm Road) 
 

3.4 Public Safety 
3.5 Parks and Recreation 
3.6 Judiciary and Personnel 

   
4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
5.0 NEW BUSINESS 
6.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
7.0 ADJOURNMENT 



 
 
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
www. l i n co l n sh i re i l . g ov  

 
2.1 

MINUTES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

Monday, January 14, 2019   
Present: 
Mayor Brandt      Trustee Harms Muth 
Trustee Grujanac    Trustee Hancock 
Trustee McDonough     Trustee Servi  
Trustee Leider     Village Clerk Mastandrea    
Village Attorney Simon   Village Manager Burke 
Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson   Public Works Director Woodbury 
Chief of Police Leonas   Assistant Village Manager/Community & 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya   Economic Development Director Gilbertson 
Assistant Public Works Director/Village Public Works Management Analyst Facchini 
 Engineer Dittrich 

          
        

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m. and Village Clerk Mastandrea called the 
Roll. 
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2.1 Acceptance of the December 10, 2018 Committee of the Whole Meeting 
Minutes 
 
The minutes of the December 10, 2018 Committee of the Whole Meeting were 
approved as submitted. 
 

3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
   

3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use 
3.11  Consideration and Discussion of Recent Amendments to Title 12 

(Signs) of the Lincolnshire Village Code Regarding Residential 
Real Estate Signs (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Assistant Village Manager/Community & Economic Development (CED) 

Director Gilbertson provided background and summary of recent 
amendments to Title 12 (signs) of the Village code regarding residential 
real estate signs as a result of feedback received from local businesses, 
residents, and real estate brokers. Assistant Village Manager/CED 
Director Gilbertson noted the recent size changes were modeled after 
the requirements Lake Forest and Lake Bluff have. In terms of duration, 
the decision to have all temporary signs in each district visible for 91 
days was based on a U.S. Supreme Court decision (2015 Reed v. Town 
of Gilbert). 

 



Page 2 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 
 
 

 Trustee Harms Muth asked if the U.S Supreme Court decision states 
only content neutrality applies to the duration of the sign. Village 
Attorney Simon noted each sign district is allowed to have time, place, 
and manner restrictions that are content blind. Trustee Harms Muth 
asked how other villages have their signs up for longer than 91 days. 
Village Attorney Simon stated the Supreme Court case is fairly recent. 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya surveyed other communities 
to see if they changed their code to comply with the Supreme Court 
ruling and only a few of them have changed; many communities have 
ignored it so far.  

 
 Trustee Harms Muth asked what other signs fall into the same category 

as real estate signs that the Village may be concerned about having up 
after 91 days. Village Attorney Simon stated other signs would be 
contractor signs. Trustee Leider asked if buildings under 
construction/developers would fall into this same category. Village 
Manager Burke confirmed they would fall under this category. Planning 
& Development Manager Zozulya noted church events would also fall 
under this category.  

 
 Mayor Brandt asked Village Attorney Simon if exceptions could be 

made. Village Attorney Simon stated the exception cannot be based on 
the message on the sign. There is an existing rule that says signs must 
come down within five days after the purpose of the sign is mute. There 
is a closed-end rule so people do not leave signs up if they are 
irrelevant. One way to track this is if a permit has been closed. 

 
 Mayor Brandt stated there are a few emails that came from realtors and 

invited those in the audience to make a statement. Mayor Brandt noted 
sign size was also brought up as an issue. 

 
 Ms. Edie Love, resident of 24 Berkshire and also a realtor, stated as a 

local agent she is concerned with the proposed size and duration. Ms. 
Love stated Lake Forest and Lake Bluff are the only areas that have the 
small size Lincolnshire is proposing to change to. The current market 
time in Lincolnshire for home sales is 270 days, making the current 
duration an issue for real estate signs.  

 
 Mr. Steve Grunyk, resident of 4 Sherwood Drive and also a realtor, 

stated his biggest concern is losing momentum and noted realtors need 
every tool to sell homes. Taking the signs down prevents this from 
happening and asked the Board to reconsider.  

 
 Ms. Marcia Vecchione, resident of 32 Berkshire Lane and also a realtor, 

stated she is in agreement with Ms. Love and Mr. Grunyk.  
 
 Trustee Leider asked for clarification on what the residents are 

suggesting. All three residents stated they are not in favor of the 
proposed changes to the sign code. The residents/realtors are asking 



Page 3 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 
 
 

how these changes came up. Planning & Development Manager 
Zozulya provided background to the proposed sign code changes. A 
conversation regarding real estate signs and time frame related to the 
proposed sign changes followed.  

 
 Trustee Servi voiced concern over trying to regulate the outlier and 

asked if there was another way to regulate duration. Village Attorney 
Simon stated if there was no time limit required for temporary signs in 
this zoning district, with no rule to enforce an end time of an event, this 
could be a way to regulate. Assistant Village Manager/CED Director 
Gilbertson stated the intent of revising the code was to address signs 
going up well before the start time of an event. Trustee Leider stated his 
concern is the temporary signs would stay up indefinitely and suggested 
creating a separate categories for temporary signs. Village Attorney 
Simon stated it is easier to create sign maintenance rules than to carve 
out categories for these signs.  

 
 Trustee Harms Muth asked how other municipalities are dealing with the 

end time for real estate signs. Village Attorney Simon stated other 
municipalities are governing these signs by their sign codes and may 
not yet have amended their codes to reflect content neutrality 
requirements based on the Reed v. Town of Gilbert case. A 
conversation regarding proposed time limits and on temporary signs 
followed. 

 
 Trustees Grujanac and Harms Muth noted there opinion was to make 

the time limit of the temporary signs a year. Trustee Leider stated his 
opinion was there needs to be a time limit on the temporary signs but 
thought a year might be too long.  

 
 Trustee Harms Muth asked for further clarification on what other types 

of signs fall into this category. Village Attorney Simon stated contractor 
signs, roofing, decorating, remodeling, school signs, Village signs, and 
promotional events for churches in the residential areas.  

 
 Village Manager Burke noted the concern of the Village Board seemed 

to be the duration limit of so many days before and after the event. 
Village Manager Burke asked why couldn’t there be a duration attached 
to the code change. Village Attorney Simon stated he is not aware how 
to enforce a time limit before a house goes up for sale. Village Attorney 
Simon stated almost every type of sign requires an end date that can be 
associated with it and suggested having the rule apply to the end of the 
period. Trustee Leider noted concern regarding refreshing a sign after a 
long period of time.  Mayor Brandt asked if they can include language to 
have the signs refreshed after a certain amount of time. Village Attorney 
Simon suggested adding rules regarding sign aesthetics. 

 
 A conversation regarding the change to temporary sign sizes followed. 

Ms. Love expressed the desire to keep the sign size the same it 



Page 4 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 
 
 

currently is.  
 
 Mayor Brandt directed staff to poll the Trustees not in attendance and 

go with the consensus for size. 
 
 It was the consensus of the Board to refer this to the Architectural 

Review Board for a Public Hearing at the February 19, 2019 Meeting 
once staff makes noted changes and gets consensus on sign sizes from 
the absent Trustees. 

 
 3.12 Preliminary Evaluation Regarding a Text Amendment to Eliminate 

Ground Floor Sales Tax Generating Use Restrictions in B1 and B2 
Business Zoning Districts (Alexander and Julia Katsnelson) 

 
  Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson provided a summary 

of a preliminary evaluation regarding a text amendment to eliminate 
ground floor sales tax generating use restrictions in B1 and B2 Business 
Zoning Districts as petitioned by Alexander and Julia Katsnelson. The 
text amendment is necessary for them, as physicians, to establish new 
dermatology and oral, maxillofacial, and surgery practices at 231 Olde 
Half Day Road in the B1 zoning district. The proposal is supported and 
has been approved by property owner Njb Real Estate LLC. 

 
  Mayor Brandt asked if this was addressed a few weeks ago when the 

Board discussed this for the O/I District and thought the decision was 
already made. Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson 
stated this is a different zoning district. Village Manger Burke noted Staff 
saw an opportunity to raise a broader conversation about the entirety of 
B1 and B2. Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson noted 
staff would bring back changes for the entire zoning district but the 
petitioner would like to move forward with their business and this is the 
reason the request is being brought up separately.  

   
  Dr. Alex Katsnelson provided a presentation regarding their proposed 

business and petition for preliminary evaluation regarding a text 
amendment to eliminate ground floor sales tax generating use 
restrictions in B1 and B2 Business Zoning Districts.  

 
  Mayor Brandt asked how large the lot was and noted concern about 

building size and if parking requirements would be sufficient. Dr. 
Katsnelson stated they would present the findings at the next meeting 
but stated he felt parking would be adequate. Mayor Brandt asked if 
they had looked at other locations in Lincolnshire. Dr. Katslelson stated 
they had but preferred this particular location given its accessibility on 
Olde Half Day Road and proximity to other businesses and institutions.  

 
  The consensus of the Board was to refer this to the Zoning Board.  
 
 3.13 Consideration of Amendments to Title 5 (Building Regulations and 



Page 5 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 
 
 

Title 7 (Subdivision and Lane Development) of the Lincolnshire 
Village Code (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
  Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson provided a summary 

of amendments to Title 5 (Building Regulations) and Title 7 (Subdivision 
and Lane Development) of the Lincolnshire Village Code. Assistant 
Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson noted the following high-level, 
proposed changes or areas for additional research: 

 
• Timing of approvals and when preliminary improvement plans 

are available to the Village Board. Staff has discussed having 
the Board authorize preliminary improvement plans but hold off 
on final plat approval until all offsite improvements are known. 
 
Trustee Leider asked if this is enough of a requirement noting 
the example of the development on Riverwoods Road offsite 
improvements being a requirement of Lake County and 
ultimately the offsite improvements not being beneficial to the 
residents. A conversation regarding jurisdiction, offsite 
improvements, and how the village can better understand offsite 
improvement followed. It was noted that the Board would like all 
offsite improvements captured prior to final approval.  
 

• Development donations and application fees for unincorporated 
subdivisions. 
 

• Updated construction and landscaping standards. 
 

• Park donations for commercial developments and PUD’s. Village 
Attorney Simon stated it could be difficult for the Village to 
substantiate this type of donation for commercial developments. 
Mayor Brandt stated she noticed a lot of people in the corporate 
center walk during lunch and asked if the Village could use PUD 
donations for path improvements. Village Attorney Simon 
provided statistics used for residential donations and stated a 
similar calculation for employees generated by commercial 
developments would be needed. Trustee Leider suggested 
collecting donations for open space/green space for new 
commercial development in order to prevent density. Village 
Attorney Simon stated the Village has authority to require 
developments have a certain amount of green space or provide 
an alternative to pay a donation fees in lieu of green space. 
Trustee Grujanac asked if they could include a requirement for 
connectivity. Village Attorney Simon stated they could include a 
requirement for sidewalks and paths. 

 
• Reimbursement of connection fees. The code currently allows 

property owners or tenants of a building to seek reimbursement 
of connection fees if they can demonstrate actual usage is less 



Page 6 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 
 
 

than what the Village originally estimated when calculating 
connection fees. Mayor Brandt asked if this had ever been done. 
Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson stated this 
has been done, and Village Manager Burke stated there is 
currently one reimbursement pending which could be 
substantial.  

 
• Potential implementation of a storm water utility and/or storm 

water connection fee.  
 

Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson stated In terms of 
approval process, the Village Board holds all authority with review and 
approval of all subdivision and building codes. The Board can refer the 
revisions to the Zoning Board if they would like them to look at things in 
more detail but it is not required. Any changes to the building code 
would require a 30 day notice to the Capital Development Board. 
 
Trustee Leider would like staff to research and possibly add noise 
pollution, industrial machinery, and hours of operation for large pieces of 
property to be developed in residential areas. Trustee Leider noted 
additional concern regarding utility companies coming in to work and 
asked staff to look at this and possibly be more limiting. Assistant 
Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson stated the utility contractors 
go out in an event of an emergency for repair and have authority to do 
this. Village Manager Burke stated staff can look at this and noted 
residents may not realize when a utility company is in one location, the 
work they are doing may be affecting a resident across town. Village 
Manager Burke noted staff will research how other municipalities are 
handling this.  
 
Mayor Brandt requested staff get a recap of working hours for 
contractors and report back to the Board. 

 
3.2 Finance and Administration 

3.21 Consideration of an Extension to Tolling Agreement Related to the 
Illinois Municipal Investment Fund (IMET) (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Village Manager Burke provided a summary of the fourth extension to 

Tolling Agreement related to the Illinois Municipal Investment Fund 
(IMET) which relates to funds the Village has put in an account with 
IMET for an ongoing securities fraud case.  

 
 It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

3.22 Consideration of a Resolution Approving Closed Session Meeting 
Minutes and Authorizing the Village Clerk to Make Certain Closed 
Session Meeting Minutes Available to the Public for Inspection 
Second Review – 2018 and Authorizing the Destruction of Certain 



Page 7 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 
 
 

Audio Recordings of Closed Session Minutes (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 

 
 Village Manager Burke provided a summary of the semi-annual 

resolution approving closed session meeting minutes and authorizing 
the Village Clerk to make certain closed session meeting minutes 
available to the public for inspection and authorizing the destruction of 
certain audio recordings of closed session minutes.   

 
 It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

3.3 Public Works 
3.31 Consideration of a Waiver of Posting Request for Qualifications 

(RFQ) for Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Engineering and 
Approval of Staff Negotiating a Contract Extension with RJN 
Group, Inc. for Design Engineering Services (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 

  
Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich provided a 
summary of a waiver of posting request for qualifications (RFQ) for 
sanitary sewer system analysis and engineering and approval of staff 
negotiating a contract extension with RJN Group, Inc. for design 
engineering services which is the same contractor used for the last 
three years. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 
Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

3.32 Consideration of Qualifications-Based Selection Policy and 
Procedure for the Village of Lincolnshire (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 
Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich provided a 
summary of proposed qualifications-based selection policy and 
procedure for the Village of Lincolnshire. The policy was provided by the 
Illinois Department of Transportation and is required in order to use 
federal funds on projects. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 
Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

3.33 Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 15 of Title 1 
Comprehensive Fee Schedule of the Lincolnshire Village Code to 
Update Engineering Fees & Water Meter Fees (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 
 
Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich provided a 
summary of a proposed Ordinance amending Chapter 15 of Title 1 
Comprehensive Fee Schedule of the Village Code to update 



Page 8 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 
 
 

engineering fees and water meter fees.  
 
It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 
Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 

 
3.4 Public Safety 
3.5 Parks and Recreation 
 3.51 Consideration of a Lincolnshire Parks Survey (Village of 

Lincolnshire) 
 
  Public Works Management Analyst Facchini provided a summary of a 

proposed Lincolnshire Parks Survey which was approved by the Park 
Board and is to be shared through the Villages communication network.  

 
  Trustee Grujanac provided additional information regarding what the 

Park Board is seeking from the survey as a result of Park Board tours.  
 
  Mayor Brandt asked how the survey would be communicated to 

residents. Public Works Management Analyst Facchini stated the 
survey would be administered through an online web provider and 
posted on the Village website, E-News, Facebook, and Twitter. Village 
Manager Burke noted the survey would also be included in the monthly 
utility bills. Mayor Brandt suggested sending this out to the Lincolnshire 
Council of Presidents and sharing it with the other community groups. 
Trustee Grujanac suggested providing the link to Lincolnshire Sports 
Association to be included as part of registration and shared with the 
schools. Mayor Brandt stated she could share the survey to her 
personal Facebook page and asked the other Board members if they 
would be willing to do the same. 

 
  Mayor Brandt noted she would like Blackboard Connect shared with the 

schools so they could post it to their virtual backpack.  
 
  Trustee Leider asked when the survey would be going out and what the 

timeframe for completion was. Public Works Management Analyst 
Facchini stated the survey could be loaded on the website within 
minutes and sharing that link on social media. The Park Board did not 
indicate an end time. Village Manager Burke suggested leaving the 
survey open for 30 – 45 days. 

 
  A discussion on sharing with other organizations followed.  
 
  Trustee Leider asked what we are trying to achieve from the survey and 

is the survey the right mechanism to get results. Trustee Grujanac noted 
the Park Board wanted to know in general how the residents felt about 
the parks. 

 
  It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 



Page 9 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 
 
 

 
3.6 Judiciary and Personnel 

 
4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
5.0 NEW BUSINESS   

5.1 Sedgebrook Special Tax Report  
 

Village Manager Burke stated the Sedgebrook Special Tax Report was 
included in Manager’s Notes this past week and is updated annually. 
 

5.2 Illinois Municipal League Lawsuit 
 

Village Manager Burke noted there was a motion filed by the plaintiff to amend 
and alter the judgement on the dismissal of the Illinois Municipal League (IML) 
lawsuit. There is a hearing slated for later this month.  
 

5.3 Summer Slam 
 

Village Manager Burke stated a date was previously provided for Summer Slam 
of June 25th and Lincolnshire Sports Association has potentially moved it up to 
June 19th.  
 

5.4 Ascension of Our Lord Greek Orthodox Church 
 

Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson stated the Architectural 
Review Board (ARB) is considering a minor amendment to the Ascension of 
Our Lord Greek Orthodox Church building plans at the meeting tomorrow. The 
church is looking to revise the material of the dome. The materials are easier to 
maintain and consistent with the current materials. Village Manager Burke 
stated the color is a gray, zinc material. 
 
Mayor Brandt stated the Village Board will want to see a sample of what was 
approved and the proposed.  
 
Village Manager Burke stated this is considered a minor amendment so is not 
required to be approved by the Village Board.   
 
Mayor Brandt asked for staff opinion regarding the change. Village Manager 
Burke noted staff thinks it meets what the original approval in terms of color and 
finish.  
 
Mayor Brandt stated there is half a fence hanging up around the house they 
purchased and asked if they could mandate they do something with the fence. 
Staff will look into the issue of the fence. 

 
6.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
7.0 ADJOURNMENT 



Page 10 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
January 14, 2019 
 
 

Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Harms Muth seconded the motion to adjourn. 
Upon a voice vote, the motion was approved unanimously and Mayor Brandt declared 
the meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
 
 
 

 
 
 Barbara Mastandrea 

 Village Clerk 



 

Agenda Item 
3.11 COW 

 
 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Committee of the Whole  

January 28, 2019 
 
Subject: Home2 Hotel by Hilton – 350 Knightsbridge Parkway 

 
Action Requested: Preliminary Evaluation of a Petition for a Text Amendment to Revise 

Hotel Parking Requirements for Dining Areas   
 

Petitioner: Knight Bridge Pkwy, LLC  
 

Originated By/Contact: Ben Gilbertson, Assistant Village Manager/CED Director 
 

Referred To: Zoning Board & Architectural Review Board 
 
 

Background: 
• Vaibhav Sevale and Kamlesh Patel of Knight Bridge 

Pkwy, LLC (the “Petitioner”), request a text amendment to 
Title 6 (Zoning), Chapter 11 (Off-Street Parking & 
Loading) of the Lincolnshire Village Code to modify the 
parking requirement calculation for hotels (see 
Documents 1 and 2). The previous petitioner for the 
proposal was Silva Architects, Ltd. 
 

• On September 24, 2018, the Petitioner requested 
Preliminary Evaluation of their request for a special use 
permit (SU) to construct a 112-room Home2 Hotel by 
Hilton at 350 Knightsbridge Parkway.  The petitioner also 
requested variances for (1) building height, (2) front yard 
setback, (3) rear yard landscape/parking setback, and (4) 
side yard landscape/parking setback. It was the consensus 
of the Village Board to refer this project to the Architectural 
Review Board and Zoning Board (see Document 6). 

 
• After Village Board referral, and upon further review of the site plan and anticipated construction 

costs, the Petitioner elected to eliminate the 16 underground parking stalls included as part of the 
original site plan. Instead, and in consultation with staff, the Petitioner decided to pursue a text 
amendment to hotel parking requirements that achieve all of the required parking stalls above-grade 
(see Document 3). 

 
Summary & Staff Comments: 
• Currently, Village Code requires hotels to provide parking based on the following calculation: 

 
1/unit + 0.5 employee + 1/50 SF of lounge or dining area 

 
The hotel use for the subject property calls for 112 units, equating to 112 spaces. With respect to the 
employee component of the calculation for the proposed use, Section 6-11-2(3) of the Village code 
requires parking spaces for employees be based on “the maximum number of employees on duty or 
residing on the premises at any one time.” The Petitioner indicates a maximum of 10 employees 

Figure 1: Aerial Image of 350 Knightsbridge Pkwy 



 

Agenda Item 
3.11 COW 

 
would be on-site at any given time, yielding 5 spaces. The requested text amendment is to amend 
the 1/50 SF of lounge or dining area component of the equation. 
 

• Village code requires parking spaces for dining or lounge area square footage regardless of whether 
the dining/lounge area is intended for hotel guests only, as opposed to guests and the public. 
Because Home2 Suites caters only to hotel guests, the Petitioner proposes to amend hotel parking 
requirements as follows (proposed language in italics):  

 
1/unit + 0.5 employee + 1/50 SF of lounge or dining area open to the public 

 
The proposed amendment would allow hotels with concepts similar to the Home2 Suites (e.g., a 
breakfast bar or café used primarily by only hotel guests) to right-size required parking, while hotels 
with brand-name restaurants or bars serving both the public and hotel guests (e.g., Marriott Resort) 
would continue to require one space for every 50 square feet of dining or lounge area. 
 

• A March 2016 Northwest Municipal Conference survey of 14 area communities found parking 
regulations for new hotel developments vary in approach when estimating hotel parking. Generally, 
most communities require at least one space for every room. However, parking stalls based on 
number of employees on duty, restaurant square footage, office space, and other factors differ 
between communities. Some communities explicitly require parking spaces for restaurants that can 
serve-non guests, while others are silent. Still other communities request petitioners to provide actual 
parking count data or evaluate hotel uses and required parking on case-by-case basis via special 
use ordinance process (see Document 5). 
 

Review & Approval Process: 
Requests for a special use permit, variances, and text amendment require Preliminary Evaluation by 
the Village Board, followed by a public hearing at the Zoning Board (ZB). The ARB will review the 
application for site and building design, landscaping, signage, lighting, and site amenities. The Village 
Board will conduct final review and potential approval upon the recommendations of the ZB and ARB. 
If the Village Board grants a special use permit, the approval shall become null and void unless 
construction is substantially under way within three years from the date of the approval. 

Recommendation: 
Preliminary evaluation and referral to the Zoning Board for a public hearing and the Architectural 
Review Board for design review. 

Reports and Documents Attached: 
• Document 1: Cover letter from William J. Zalewski, P.E., submitted on behalf of the Petitioner, 

Knight Bridge Pkwy, LLC, dated January 17, 2018. 
• Document 2: Updated Planning and Zoning Application, dated January 11, 2019. 
• Document 3: Updated preliminary site and landscape plans. 
• Document 4: Title 6 (Zoning), Chapter 11 (Off-Street Parking & Loading) of the Lincolnshire 

Village Code. 
• Document 5: Northwest Municipal Conference Survey of hotel parking calculations, March 2016. 
• Document 6: Minutes from the September 24, 2018 Committee of the Whole meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item 
3.11 COW 

 
Meeting History 

Committee of the Whole Meeting –  
Preliminary Evaluation  

(Special Use Permit and Variances) 
September 24, 2018 

Committee of the Whole Meeting –  
Preliminary Evaluation 

(Text Amendment) 
January 28, 2019 

 



Advantage Consulting Engineers 
 

80 Main Street - Suite 17 - Lemont, Illinois 60439 
847-260-4758 

January 17, 2019 
Mayor Brandt & Board of Trustees 
Village of Lincolnshire 
One Half Day Road 
Lincolnshire, IL 60069 
 

Text Amendment Request  
Parking Requirements 
 
Dear Mayor Brandt & Board of Trustees: 
 
On behalf of the owners of the proposed 112-room Home2 Hotel to be located at 350 Knightsbridge 
Parkway we are requesting a Text Amendment to the Zoning Code with respect to the number of required 
parking spaces for a Hotel. 
 
Zoning code section 6-11-2 (portion of section inserted below) requires the number of parking stalls for a 
Hotel to be: One (1) stall per room plus One-half (0.5) stall per employee plus one (1) stall per 50 square 
feet of dining or lounge area. 
 

  

Use Minimum Number of 
Required Spaces 

Commercial  

Automotive repair facility, service facility 0.5/employee + 2/service bay 

Banks and Financial Institutions 1/250 SF + 2 stacking spaces/ATM + 3 
                                                                                                stacking spaces/drive-up service window          
Catering Establishment 

Office, business or professional  
Printing, publishing, blueprinting and photocopying 

  establishments                                                                     
1/250 SF 

Radio and television stations  

Day Spa 1/150 SF of gross leasable area 

Dispensary Organization 1/175 SF of office space + 1/2,000 SF of 
warehouse/storage space 

Hotels 1/unit + 0.5/employee + 1/50 SF of lounge or 
                                                                                                dining area                                                          
Convenience store 

Drinking establishment  
  Food store, including candy/confectionery stores, dairy 
  products and bakeries                                                          

 

Funeral home  

General retail and service use 
 
 

Pharmacy/drug store 1/200 SF 

Document 1



Home2 Hotel: Text Amendment 

Liquor sales, package goods 

Musical instrument sales and repair shop 

Motor vehicle sales 

Pet shop 

Shopping center 

Physician office 1/employee + 2/examination room 

Restaurants (Fast Food w/ Drive-Through) 
10/1,000 S.F. + 4 stacking spaces/drive-up 
service window + 2 stacking spaces for each 

        additional ordering station       
Restaurants (Fast Food) 13/1,000 SF 

Restaurants (Table Service, Convenience Dining) 12/1,000 SF 

Salon (hair, nails, makeup), barber shop 1/employee + 2/chair 

Vehicle fueling station 1/fueling pump + 1/employee + 1/500 SF of 
        convenience store area       

Our Text Amendment request is with respect to the number of parking stalls required for a Hotel with a 
Dining or Lounge Area.   Dining services at the Home2 Hotel will be limited to guests staying at the Hotel.  
Dining services for outside guests are not provided.  Therefore, we are requesting this section of the 
Zoning Code regarding parking stalls for the Dining Area be applied only to Hotels with Dining Areas that 
market to both Hotel guests as well as the public. 

We will meet the Zoning Code regarding one (1) stall per room (total of 112 rooms/stalls) plus and one-
half (0.5) stall per employee (total of 5 stalls for the maximum 10 employees per shift) and no stalls 
required for dining area. 

Based on above parking requirements we will provide a total of 118 stalls (112 stalls for 112 rooms, 5 stalls 
for the 10 employees and 1 extra/bonus stall). 

CBRE Study: 

Based on a CBRE Study conducted in 2017 it is estimated the average Hotel occupancy rate exceeds 85 
percent approximately 84 days per year.  For the remaining 281 days the average occupancy rate is 
approximately 75 percent. 

Applying the CBRE Study’s findings the proposed Home2 Hotel’s 112 rooms at an 85 percent occupancy 
rate would require 96 (or more) parking stalls for 84 days per year.  For the remainder of the year the 
parking demand for Home2 Hotel’s 112 rooms will be 95 stalls or less. 

Considering the results of the CBRE Study, on average there will be 84 days in which the number of stalls 
required will be at least 96 stalls resulting in approximately 16 available stalls (112 – 96).  For the 
remainder of the year the CBRE Study estimates the occupancy rate to be 75 percent or 84 stalls resulting 
in 28 available stalls (112 – 84). 

Daily Operations: 

Considering the ideal location of the Home2 Hotel with respect to the adjacent Corporate Community the 
majority of the guests visiting this Hotel will be Business related rather than leisure.  Therefore, during the 
day time hours guests will not be at the Home2 Hotel but at business related activities. 

Document 1



Home2 Hotel: Text Amendment 

As a reference, during the day time hours, the majority of the guests will be at business related functions, 
housekeeping staff will be addressing their responsibilities and check-in for the arrival of new guests 
would be after 2:00 pm.   During the evening hours, after dinner, is when all or most of the guests are 
expected to be in the Hotel.  During these hours typically 2 employees – the evening auditor and 
maintenance person are on call.  

Employee Hours: 

Below are the typical hours of the employees at the Home2 Hotel: 

1 - FRONT DESK: There is a Front Desk Attendant present 24 hours a day. 
6 - HOUSEKEEPING: Housekeeping Staff is comprised of 6 part time or 3 full time.  The 

housekeeping shift is between 7:00 am and 3:00 pm. 
1 - BREAKFAST AREA:  One server manages the breakfast area between 6:00 am to 10:00 am. 
1 - GENERAL MANAGER: The General Manager’s hours are between 8:00 am and 5:00 pm. 
1 - MAINTENANCE: Maintenance person is on call. 

The owners of the Home2 Hotel anticipate a maximum of ten (10) employees on site during day time 
when most of the guests are not on site. 

Dining Area: 

The Dining area serves a continental breakfast for Home2 Hotel guests only.  The Dining area is not open 
to outside transients and non-guests are not permitted or expected to use the Dining area.  

Summary: 

Based on the knowledge of our operations and the CBRE Study we respectively request a Text Amendment 
to allow a reduction in the parking from 122 Stalls to 117 Stalls: 

One (1) stall per room 112 rooms 112 stalls 
One-half (0.5) stall per employee 11 10 employees  005 stalls 
One (1) stall per 50 sf of dining area 272 square feet 006 stalls 

TOTAL 123 Stalls 
To: 
One (1) stall per room 112 rooms 112 stalls 
One-half (0.5) stall per employee 11 110 employees 005 stalls 

TOTAL 117 Stalls 
Our site plan provides 118 parking stalls. 

If you should have any questions or comments, please don't hesitate to contact my office. 
Very truly yours, 

Advantage Consulting Engineers 

William J. Zalewski, P.E. 
Partner  

Document 1



Document 2



Document 2



Document 2



 
 
A

D
V

A
N

T
A

G
E

 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

I
N

G
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

 80
 
M

A
I
N

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
-
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
7
 
-
 
L
E

M
O

N
T

,
 
I
L
L
I
N

O
I
S

 
6
0
4
3
9

8
4
7
-
2
6
0
-
4
7
5
8

H
O

M
E

 
2
 
H

O
T

E
L

 
B

U
Y

 
H

I
L

T
O

N

3
5
0
 
K

N
I
G

H
T

B
R

I
D

G
E

 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

L
I
N

C
O

L
N

S
H

I
R

E
,
 
I
L

K
N

I
G

H
T

 
B

R
I
D

G
E

 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

,
 
L

L
C

7
0
0
 
B

E
C

K
E

R
 
R

O
A

D

G
L

E
N

V
I
E

W
,
 
I
L

 
6
0
0
2
5

SP1

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

Document 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%D15'00" W  292.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=640' , L=186.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 78%%D35'18" E  108.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%D45'00" W  322.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%D45'00" W  350.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNIGHT BRIDGE PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright c 2019 Advantage Consulting Engineers, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
   OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB: 18-040

AutoCAD SHX Text
JANUARY 14, 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA KEY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURROUNDING CONTEXT A 6 STORY HOTEL @ 300 MARRIOTT DR. 6 STORY HOTEL @ 300 MARRIOTT DR. B 4 STORY OFFICE BUILDING @ 333 KNIGHTBRIDGE PARKWAY 4 STORY OFFICE BUILDING @ 333 KNIGHTBRIDGE PARKWAY C 4 STORY OFFICE BUILDING @ 300 KNIGHTBRIDGE PARKWAY 4 STORY OFFICE BUILDING @ 300 KNIGHTBRIDGE PARKWAY D 2 STORY PARKING GARAGE ADJ. TO 6 STORY OFFICE BLDG. 2 STORY PARKING GARAGE ADJ. TO 6 STORY OFFICE BLDG. @ 4 OVERLOOK COURT E SINGLE STORY OFFICE/WAREHOUSE @ 405 BARCLAY BLVD. SINGLE STORY OFFICE/WAREHOUSE @ 405 BARCLAY BLVD. F SINGLE STORY OFFICE BUILDING @ 400 KNIGHTBRIDGE PARKWAY SINGLE STORY OFFICE BUILDING @ 400 KNIGHTBRIDGE PARKWAY G 4 STORY OFFICE BUILDING @ 455 KNIGHTBRIDGE PARKWAY4 STORY OFFICE BUILDING @ 455 KNIGHTBRIDGE PARKWAY



KNIGHTBRIDGE   PARKWAYKNIGHTBRIDGE   PARKWAY

BARCLAY  BO
ULEVARD

M
ILW

A
U

K
EE  A

V
EN

U
E  -   ILLIN

O
IS  R

O
U

TE  45

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

SHEET NO.

REVISIONS

DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE

PROJECT NO.

P
L

O
T

 
C

O
N

F
I
G

:
X

R
E

F
S

:

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 
P

L
A

N

1

H
O

M
E

2
 
H

O
T

E
L

 
B

Y
 
H

I
L

T
O

N

3
5

0
 
K

N
I
G

H
T

S
B

R
I
D

G
E

 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

L
I
N

C
O

L
N

S
H

I
R

E
,
 
I
L

L
I
N

O
I
S

1.18.2019

AC1820

GFB

MGM

    OF 1

1.22.20191

ADVANTAGE CONSULTING

ENGINEERS

80 MAIN STREET, SUITE 17

LEMONT, ILLINOIS 60439

CIVIL ENGINEER

0 10' 20' 40' 60'

SCALE:  1"=20' NORTH

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

SCALE:  1"=200'

LOCATION MAP

REPRESENTATIVE PLANT LIST

GENERAL NOTES

PERENNIALS AND GROUNDCOVERS

NOT TO SCALE

NOT TO SCALE

DECIDUOUS AND EVERGREEN SHRUBS

DECIDUOUS TREES

NOT TO SCALE

EVERGREEN TREES

NOT TO SCALE

PLANTING DETAILS

Document 3



  
VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE TITLE 6-11: OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 1 

TITLE 6: Zoning 
CHAPTER 11: Off-Street Parking and Loading 
 
Sections: 
6-11-1:  General Requirements 
6-11-2:  Off-Street Parking Facilities 
6-11-3: Off-Street Loading Facilities 
 
6-11-1: General Requirements  
 
A. General Applicability: Off-street parking and loading facilities for all existing and new 

structures and uses of land within the Village of Lincolnshire shall be in accordance with the 
provisions of this Chapter. 

 
B. Increase in Intensity: Whenever the intensity of use of any structure, or premises is 

increased through the addition of dwelling units, gross floor area, seating capacity, or other 
units of measurement specified herein for required parking or loading facilities, parking and 
loading facilities shall be required for such increases in intensity. 

 
C. Change in Use: Whenever a use existing on the effective date of this Chapter is changed to 

a new use, parking or loading facilities shall be provided as required herein for such new 
use. 

 
D. Responsibility: The duty to provide and maintain off-street parking spaces and/or loading 

facilities shall be the joint and several responsibility of the operator and/or owner of the use 
and/or owner of the land for which off-street parking spaces and/or loading facilities are 
required to be provided and maintained hereunder. 

 
E. Design Plan: Parking and loading facilities shall be illustrated on a site plan to be submitted 

with all applications for Building Permits or Certificates of Occupancy in accordance with the 
provisions of this Chapter. 

 
F. Snow Removal: Accommodations shall be made for the storage and/or removal of snow 

from all parking and loading facilities. Areas for snow storage shall be designated 
reasonably close to drains or catch basins. Snow storage within landscaped areas should 
be avoided to prevent damage to plant material. 

 
6-11-2: Off-Street Parking Facilities: 
 
A. General Requirements 
 

1. Use: Required off-street parking facilities shall be solely for the parking of vehicles 
used for the transportation of occupants, patrons, employees or materials of the uses 
to which they are accessory. Each required parking space shall be kept available at all 
times for parking of such vehicles. No required parking space shall be rented, leased 
or used for any purpose other than that for which said space is required.  
 

2. Access: Off-street parking facilities shall be designed and located to provide 
appropriate means of vehicular access to adjacent streets or alley ways in a manner 

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 2 

which will least interfere with traffic movements. Parking spaces shall open directly 
upon an aisle or driveway of such width and designed to provide safe and efficient 
means of vehicular access to such parking space at all times. 
 

3. Computation: When the number of parking spaces required herein results in a 
fractional space, any fraction shall require one (1) additional parking space. Parking 
spaces required on a square footage basis shall be based on the gross square footage 
of the structure/leasable space. Parking spaces required on an employee basis shall 
be based on the maximum number of employees on duty or residing on the premises 
at any one time. 
 

4. Shared Parking Facilities: Parking spaces required for separate structures and uses 
may be provided collectively on the same lot, provided use of such spaces shall not 
occur at the same time based on the operations of the uses they are serving. The 
minimum number of required parking spaces shall be established by the primary use 
or the highest parking generating use, whichever is more. 
 

5. Land Banking: The Zoning Administrator may authorize a reduction in the total number 
of off-street parking spaces required herein, subject to the following: 

 
a. No more than 50% of the required parking spaces shall be landbanked. 

 
b. Prior to authorization of landbanked spaces, the lot owner or tenant must 

demonstrate that required parking spaces are excessive as applied to the use of 
the zoning lot, including but not limited to employee counts, lack of public 
customers, or similar scenarios. 

 
c. Every request for landbanking of required parking spaces shall be accompanied by 

a detailed parking plan identifying the area(s) reserved for future parking and the 
landscape treatment of such open space. 

 
d. The property owner shall file with the Zoning Administrator his/her unconditional 

agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the Village Attorney that the 
area(s) reserved for future parking shall be maintained as landscaped open space 
until and unless required to be used for off-street parking in compliance with this 
Chapter. Such agreement shall be recorded with the Lake County Recorder’s 
Office. 

 
e. The Zoning Administrator, in his/her sole discretion, shall have the authority to 

require the property owner or successor, at any time, to increase the number of 
parking spaces required by this Chapter. 

 
B. Location:  

 
1. All parking facilities shall be located in the same zoning lot as the structure or use to 

which they serve. Parking facilities of ten (10) or more parking spaces may be located 
on a separate lot provided said parking spaces are located within the development in 
which such parking spaces are serving.  

 
2. Parking facilities solely for employees, may be located on a separate lot provided no 

such parking spaces shall be located in excess of six hundred feet (600') measured 
along a paved pedestrian circulation route to the nearest building entrance.  

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 3 

Figure 1 
Vehicle Overhang 

 

 
3. Residential zoning: Parking facilities containing three or more spaces shall not be 

located in a Front, Side, or Rear Setback, as defined in Chapter 2 of this Title, except 
when a garage structure is located within the Rear Setback. Surfaced driveways may 
be used as parking spaces in addition to the requirements herein. 

 
4. All Other Zoning Districts: Required parking spaces shall not be located in a Front or 

Corner Side Yard, as defined in Chapter 2 of this Title, and shall be located a minimum 
of twenty five (25) feet from the property line of any adjoining residential zoning district, 
except as permitted in Section 6-8-11(B) of this Title.  Required parking spaces may 
be located in an interior side yard or rear yard in all non-residential zoning districts, 
provided in the O/I districts a fully landscaped and maintained strip of at least fifteen 
feet (15') in the O/Ia and O/lb subdistricts or eight feet (8') in the O/Ic and O/Id 
subdistricts is installed and maintained continuously along the perimeter of the 
applicable rear and interior side yards (excluding driveway or sidewalk entrances, or 
railroad track frontage).  

C. Size: Every parking space shall conform to the parking dimensions identified on the Off-
street Parking Chart found at the end of this Chapter, exclusive of access drive aisles, 
ramps, etc., and have a minimum vertical clearance of seven (7) feet. For parking spaces 
adjacent to a curb, the parking space length shall be shortened by two (2) feet to provide 
sufficient vehicle overhang (see Figure 1). For parking spaces where vehicle overhang is 
adjacent to a pedestrian walkway, the walkway width shall be a minimum of seven (7) feet to 
provide unobstructed pedestrian access (see Figure 1). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D. Design and Maintenance: 
 

1. Surfacing:  
 

a. Single-Family Residential: Off-street parking facilities accessory to single-family 
residential (attached or detached) shall be paved or otherwise surfaced with an all-
weather dustless material. The portion of the driveway connecting from the curb 
line to the property line shall be paved with concrete, asphaltic materials or 
permanent materials, in accordance with Village Codes. 
 

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 4 

b. All Other Uses: The minimum required off-street parking facilities, spaces and 
access drives shall be improved with a compacted macadam base, or equal, not 
less than six inches (6") thick, surfaced with asphaltic concrete or comparable all-
weather, dustless material. Any portion of a parking facility containing parking 
spaces in excess of 10% of the minimum number required herein shall implement 
innovative stormwater management features (commonly identified as Best 
Management Practice techniques, BMP), including but not limited to alternate 
paving surface materials, use of light colored concrete, recycled asphalt permeable 
pavement materials, bioretention areas, swales, or similar techniques approved by 
the Village of Lincolnshire; unless it can be demonstrated no further increases in 
impervious surface coverage will be produced. 
 

2. Drainage: All parking facilities shall be designed to prevent the drainage of stormwater 
onto adjoining property and to effectively manage stormwater and snowmelt on-site in 
accordance with Village Codes and the Lake County Watershed Development 
Ordinance (WDO), including the use of stormwater BMP techniques. 
 

3. Screening and Landscaping: Parking facilities shall be landscaped in accordance with 
Section 13-2-4 of Title 13.  
 

4. Illumination: Illumination of off-street parking facilities shall be in accordance with 
Section 6-3-15 of this Title. All lighting should create an identity for parking facilities 
and be appropriately designed for the location, context, and scale of the areas being 
illuminated. 
 

5. Curbing: All parking facilities, drives, access roadways, and landscape islands must be 
bordered by a six (6) inch high concrete barrier curb. Such curbing shall not be 
required if essential to the design and implementation of stormwater BMP techniques, 
as approved by the Village and Lake County Stormwater Management Commission 
(SMC). 
 

E. Parking Lot Standards: 
 

1. Parking facilities containing twenty (20) spaces or more shall have one (1) landscape 
island for every ten (10) parking spaces (see Figure 2). Landscape islands shall be a 
minimum width of nine (9) feet and a minimum length of nineteen (19) feet. 
Landscaping shall be in accordance with Section 13-2-4 of Title 13. 
 

2. Landscape islands shall be located at the end of every parking row and shall be 
landscaped in accordance with Section 13-2-4 of Title 13 (see Figure 2). 
 

3. Parking facilities containing two (2) or more parking aisles shall provide continuous 
vehicular circulation at each end of the parking aisles and shall be landscaped in 
accordance with Section 13-2-4 of Title 13 (see Figure 2). 
 

4. A minimum eight (8) foot landscaped area shall be required between all building 
façades and parking facilities, including parking spaces and circulation drives, and 
shall be landscaped in accordance with Section 13-2-4 of Title 13.  
 

5. Parking facilities containing forty (40) parking spaces or more shall have one (1) 
landscape island for every fifteen (15) parking spaces (see Figure 2). Landscape 
islands shall be a minimum width of nine (9) feet and a minimum length of nineteen 

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 5 

Figure 2 
Parking lot islands 
 

(19) feet. Landscaping shall be in accordance with Chapter 2, Landscaping, of Title 13. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F. Accessible (ADA) Parking Spaces: Off-street parking spaces required herein shall comply 

with the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design and Illinois Accessibility Code, except 
for single-family dwellings, which shall be in accordance with the following requirements: 

 
1. Required Accessible Spaces: ADA accessible parking spaces shall be included in the 

total number of required parking spaces as required in following table: 
 

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

Total Number of Parking Spaces 
Provided in Parking Facility 

Minimum Number of Required 
Accessible Parking Spaces 

1 to 25 1 
26 to 50 2 
51 to 75 3 
76 to 100 4 
101 to 150 5 
151 to 200 6 
201 to 300 7 
301 to 400 8 
401 to 500 9 
501 to 1,000 2% of total 

1001 and over 20, plus 1 for each 100, or fraction 
thereof, over 1,000 

  

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 6 

2. Van Parking Spaces: For every six (6) or fraction of six (6) accessible parking spaces 
required by (B)(1) above, at least one (1) accessible space shall be a van parking 
space. 
 
 
 

G. Specific Requirements: Off-street parking spaces shall be provided in accordance with the 
minimum requirements listed below. The format in identifying the minimum number of 
required spaces is as follows:    

 
 
 
 

Unspecified Use: When the use of a structure or lot is known, but not identified in the 
following parking table, the minimum number of parking spaces required shall be 
determined based on a reasonably comparable and/or similar use identified. 
 
 
 
 
S E E  O F F - S T R E E T  P A R K I N G  T A B L E  O N  N E X T  P A G E  

10/1,000 {Number of spaces} {Per square footage, units, seats, etc.} 

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 7 

 

Use 
Minimum Number of 
Required Spaces 

Residential 

Single-family detached dwelling 2/dwelling 

Single-family attached dwelling, townhome 2.5/dwelling 

Single-family attached dwelling, duplex 2.5/dwelling 

Continuing care retirement campus (CCRC) 1/independent living unit + 1/employee + 4% 
of the total required parking for visitor parking 

Multi-family dwelling/condominium 1.5/efficiency studio and 1 bedroom units 
2.5/2 or more bedroom units 

Recreational 

Bowling alley 4/lane + 12/1,000 sq. ft. of lounge or dining 
area 

Golf course 80/9 holes 

Park and playground 

None for first acre. 
5/1 to 5 acres + 5 for each acre in excess of 
5 acres + 1/5 persons of design capacity of 
any structure or facility 

Forest preserve/nature preserve By Village Board 

Personal fitness/instruction studio 1/4 persons based on maximum occupancy 
+1/employee 

Private or public recreation facility 
and community buildings 

1/3 persons based on maximum occupancy 
+1/employee + 1/100 sq. ft. of water surface 
area for any swimming pool facilities 

Assembly Uses 

Art galleries, libraries and museums  1/500 SF 

Exhibition and convention facilities 1/100 SF 

Meeting and events center 1/4 persons at max occupancy 

Private clubs, fraternal lodges 1/3 persons at maximum occupancy 

Religious institutions 1/4 seats 

Theater 1/3 seats 

 
 
 

O F F - S T R E E T  P A R K I N G  T A B L E  C O N T I N U E D  O N  N E X T  P A G E  

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 8 

 

Use 
Minimum Number of 
Required Spaces 

Institutional 

Child day care center 1/500 SF 

College/university or vocational, private educational 
institution, business or trade school 1/each employee + 1/3 students 

Elementary, junior high school 1/each employee 

High school 1 each employee +  
1/4 students aged 16 years or older 

Hospital 1/500 SF + 0.5/ employee 

Municipal and government buildings 1/250 SF 

Nursing/rest homes 1/1,000 SF 

Urgent medical care center/clinic 1/200 SF + 1/employee, including doctors 

Industrial  

Cargo and freight terminals  

1/250 SF of Office Space + 1/1,000 SF of 
Manufacturing Space + 1/2,000 SF of 
Warehouse Space 

Cartage and express facilities 

Laboratories or research and development facilities 

Light manufacturing, fabricating, processing, assembly, 
repairing, storing, servicing or testing of materials, 
goods or  products 

Research laboratories 

Warehouse and storage, distribution facilities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O F F - S T R E E T  P A R K I N G  T A B L E  C O N T I N U E D  O N  N E X T  P A G E  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 9 

Use 
Minimum Number of 
Required Spaces 

Commercial 

Automotive repair facility, service facility 0.5/employee + 2/service bay 

Banks and financial Institutions 1/250 SF + 2 stacking spaces/ATM + 3 
stacking spaces/drive-up service window 

Car rental facilities 1/400 SF of gross leasable area + sufficient 
parking for rental cars 

Catering establishment 

1/250 SF 
Office, business or professional 
Printing, publishing, blueprinting and photocopying 
establishments 
Radio and television stations 

Day spa 1/150 SF of gross leasable area 

Dispensary organization 1/175 SF of office space + 1/2,000 SF of 
warehouse/storage space 

Hotels  1/unit + 0.5/employee + 1/50 SF of lounge or 
dining area 

Convenience store 

1/200 SF 

Drinking establishment 
Food store, including candy/confectionery stores, dairy 
products and bakeries 
Funeral home 

General retail and service use 

Pharmacy/drug store 

Liquor sales, package goods 

Musical instrument sales and repair shop 

Motor vehicle sales 

Pet shop 

Shopping center 

Performing and visual arts studios 1/employee + 1/every 3 students  

Pet daycare, grooming and training 1/500 SF 

Physician’s office 1/employee + 2/examination room 

Restaurants (fast food with drive-thru) 
10/1,000 SF + 4 stacking spaces/drive-up 
service window + 2 stacking spaces for each 
additional ordering station  

Restaurants (fast food) 13/1,000 SF 

Restaurants (table service, convenience dining) 12/1,000 SF 

Salon (hair, nails, makeup), barber shop 1/employee + 2/chair 

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 10 

Tutoring centers 1/employee + 1/every 3 students  

Vehicle fueling station 1/fueling pump + 1/employee + 1/500 SF  of 
convenience store area 

 
E N D  O F  O F F - S T R E E T  P A R K I N G  T A B L E  

 
Off-Street Parking Chart 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF DIMENSIONS (IN FEET) 

 S P C* D E F H J K* 

0° 
8.0 22.0 8.0 8.0 12.0   28.0 8.0 
8.0 24.0 8.0  11.0   27.0 8.0 
8.0 26.0 8.0 8.0 10.0   26.0 8.0 

30° 8.5 19.0 16.9 13.2 10.0  6.0 43.8 40.1 
9.0 19.0 17.3 13.4 9.0  6.0 43.6 39.7 

45° 

8.5 19.0 19.4 16.4 10.8 15.5 9.5 49.6 46.6 
9.0 19.0 19.8 16.6 10.0 16.0 9.0 49.6 46.4 
9.5 19.0 20.1 16.7 9.5 16.5 8.5 49.7 46.3 

10.0 19.0 20.4 16.9 9.0 17.0 8.0 49.8 46.3 

60° 

8.5 19.0 20.8 18.7 18.0 15.0 12.5 59.6 57.5 
9.0 19.0 21.0 18.8 17.0 15.0 12.0 59.0 56.8 
9.5 19.0 21.3 18.9 15.5 15.0 11.5 58.1 55.7 

10.0 19.0 21.5 19.0 14.0 15.0 11.0 57.0 54.5 

90° 

8.5 19.0 19.0 19.0 27.0 20.0  65.0 65.0 
9.0 19.0 19.0 19.0 25.0 20.0  63.0 63.0 
9.5 19.0 19.0 19.0 24.0 20.0  63.0 62.0 

10.0 19.0 19.0 19.0 23.0 20.0  61.0 61.0 

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 11 

 
Notes: 
J = C +E + C 
K = C + E + D 
*Except as shorten for 2 ft. vehicle overhang per Section 6-11-2(A)(3).

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 12 

6-11-3: Off-Street Loading Facilities 
 
A. General Requirements 
 

1. Location: All required loading berths (docks) shall be located on the same zoning lot as 
the structure or use to be served. No loading berth shall be located within twenty five 
(25) feet of the nearest point of intersection of any two (2) public or private streets; nor 
shall it be located in a required front or side yard. 

 
2. Design 

 
a. Maneuvering: All loading berths shall be designed so that all maneuvering and 

standing of vehicles shall be performed on the zoning lot, except in parking lots 
with a capacity of less than fifty (50) cars in the O/Ic, O/Id and M Districts. 

 
b. Screening: All loading berths shall be fully screened from view of any public or 

private street and any adjacent property zoned for residential use. Screening 
materials shall consist of landscaping, walls, berms or any other permanent 
material which will provide continuous screening throughout the entire year. 

 
c. Access: All loading berths shall be accessed by appropriate means of vehicular 

access to a street, alley, or circulation drives which least interferes with traffic 
movements. 

 
3. Surfacing: All open loading berths shall be improved with a compacted macadam base 

not less than seven inches (7") thick, or equal, surfaced with not less than two inches 
(2") of asphaltic concrete or comparable all-weather, dustless material. The use of 
alternate paving surface materials, including but not limited to the use of light colored 
concrete, recycled asphalt, and permeable pavements such as porous pavement and 
alternate pavers is encouraged. 

 
4. Repair and Service: Storage of any kind shall be prohibited, unless such loading berth 

is located entirely within an enclosed structure. No vehicle repair work or service of 
any kind shall be permitted within any loading berth. 

 
5. Space Allocated: Space allocated to a required loading berth shall not be used to 

satisfy off-street parking space requirements. 
 
B. Specific Requirements: Off-street loading facilities shall be provided in accordance with the 

following minimum requirements: 
 
 

S E E  O F F - S T R E E T  L O A D I N G  T A B L E  O N  N E X T  P A G E  

Document 4



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 6-11 
OFF-STREET PARKING & LOADING 

 

  
Revised 12/10/2018 Page 13 

 

Use Gross Floor Area 
(Square Feet) Number of Loading Facilities Loading 

Berth Size 

Office, business or 
professional 

Less than 10,000 1 loading/unloading area N/A 

10,001 – 100,000 1 loading berth 12’ x 55’ 

100,001 – 500,000 2 loading berths + 1 loading 
berth per each additional 
500,000 SF or fraction in 
excess of 500,000 SF 

12’ x 55’ 

Industrial and 
manufacturing 

Less than 7,000 1 loading/unloading area N/A 

7,000 – 40,000 1 loading berth 12’ x 55’ 

40,001 – 100,000 2 loading berths + 1 loading 
berth per each additional 
100,000 SF or fraction thereof 

12’ x 55’ 

Warehouse 

5,000 – 40,000 1 loading berth 12’ x 55’ 

40,000 – 100,000 2 loading berths +1 loading 
berth per each additional 
100,000 SF or fraction thereof 

12’ x 65’ 

Less than 5,000 1 loading/unloading area N/A 

Commercial 

7,000 – 20,000 1 loading berth 12’ x 30’ 

20,001 – 35,000 2 loading berths 12’ x 30’ 

35,001 – 60,000 2 loading berths 12’ x 55’ 

60,001 – 100,000 3 loading berths 12’ x 55’ 
100,001 + 3 loading berths + 1 loading 

berth per each 200,000 SF or 
fraction thereof 

12’ x 55’ 

 
 

Document 4



Parking Regulations for New Hotel Developments Survey March 2016

Municipality

How does your municipality 
regulate parking for new hotel 
developments? 

What sorts of factors does your 
municipality take into 
consideration when calculating 
parking requirements for new hotel 
developments? (e.g. Number of 
rooms in hotel, number of 
employees working in hotel, types 
of uses/functions in hotel) 

How is meeting room space, 
convention areas, and/or office space 
taken into consideration when 
calculating parking requirements?

Arlington Heights

One parking space is required for 
every lodging room within a new 
hotel, plus spaces required for any 
restaurant within the hotel.
Parking beyond 50% of what is 
required by code is prohibited.

Parking is calculated by number of 
rooms. If the hotel has a restaurant, 
the parking requirement for the 
restaurant is in addition to that as 
required for the hotel. If the hotel has 
other uses (i.e. banquet hall, 
convention center, etc.), then parking 
for those ancillary uses is required in 
addition to what is required for the 
hotel.

These areas are in addition to the parking 
requirement for the hotel. However, if 
these spaces are intended for use only by 
guests of the hotel, then parking for them 
is not required (such as a business office 
for guests of the hotel). But if these areas 
can be utilized by people who are not 
guests of the hotel, then parking for them 
is required in addition to that for the hotel.

Buffalo Grove Zoning Ordinance.

Number of rooms in hotel, number of 
employees working in hotel, 
retail/service/entertainment functions 
in hotel.

Those uses aren’t specifically listed in the 
parking requirements.

Deerfield
Zoning Code - Article 8 Off-Street 
Parking and Off-Street Loading.

1.4 parking spaces per guest room for 
hotels, and 1.1 parking spaces per 
guest unit for extended stay lodging 
facilities.

They are considered ancillary to hotel use 
and no additional spaces required for 
meeting room space and convention 
areas if these are primarily for the 
registered hotel guests.

Des Plaines

The Zoning Ordinance requires 1 
space per guestroom, plus 1 space 
per 200 square feet of area devoted 
to offices.

1 space per guestroom, plus 1 space 
per 200 square feet of area devoted 
to offices.

Office space is included in Zoning 
Ordinance required parking.  Convention 
centers are not included within Zoning 
Ordinance.

Elk Grove Village

One space for each sleeping room or 
suite, plus one space for each 
employee on duty at any one time. See response #1.

If a restaurant in an integral part an 
additional space for each 100 sq. ft. of 
area is required.  If assembly rooms are 
added, 1/2 of parking required (.5 x 1/5 of 
room capacity) shall be added.

Glenview

1 space for each sleeping room or 
suite, plus 1 additional space for 
each employee on duty at any one 
time, 1 parking space for every 100 
sq. ft. of meeting rooms/bars/cocktail 
lounges.  Restaurants, retail sales or 
offices which do not exclusively 
serve the hotel shall provide parking 
based on the requirements for those 
uses in the Village standards.

Number of rooms, max number of 
employees on duty at any one time, 
square footage of the other rooms in 
the hotel including event/convention 
space/bars/offices.

1 parking space for each 100 square feet 
of meeting rooms/bar/cocktail lounge.  If 
there are other restaurants not directly 
associated with the hotel they need to 
provide 1 per 3 seats in the restaurant, 
office/retail to provide 1 per 300 sq. ft.

Hoffman Estates

Subdivision code is a guideline-1.1 
Spaces/Guest Room we ask the 
developer to provide documentation 
of parking from actual counts could 
support # higher/lower than 
guidelines.  Published data from ITE 
parking Generation, ENO Foundation 
report on parking, ULI, ETC are 
researched.

Site specific data on # rooms 
average/peak, occupancy, data from 
other similar uses programming of 
space, ETC. other spaces in hotels 
such as on-site restaurants, meeting 
rooms, and conference centers are 
considered too.  # of employees/shift, 
shift times also can be used.

Prefer to have info from actual parking 
demand counts at similar sites.  
Alternative is to estimate internal capture 
rates from restaurants, 
conference/meeting spaces, etc.

1

Document 5



Parking Regulations for New Hotel Developments Survey March 2016

Municipality

How does your municipality 
regulate parking for new hotel 
developments? 

What sorts of factors does your 
municipality take into 
consideration when calculating 
parking requirements for new hotel 
developments? (e.g. Number of 
rooms in hotel, number of 
employees working in hotel, types 
of uses/functions in hotel) 

How is meeting room space, 
convention areas, and/or office space 
taken into consideration when 
calculating parking requirements?

Lincolnshire

1 space/unit + 0.5 space/employee + 
1 space/50 SF of lounge or dining 
area.

Number of rooms, employees and the 
size of the lounge/dining area.

They are not factored in for parking 
calculation purposes.

Morton Grove

While the Village’s Unified 
Development Code does have a 
parking requirement per hotel room, 
a hotel use requires a special use 
permit for approval. The Board of 
Trustees, per code, establishes 
required parking per use for each 
approved special use ordinance 
through individual analysis of the 
proposal.

Hotels require a special use permit for 
approval. All special use applications 
require a traffic and parking study 
submitted with the application. The 
Village Board of Trustees, on the 
recommendation of the Plan 
Commission, will establish the 
amount of required parking in the final 
special use permit ordinance.

The submitted traffic study should take 
each of the above aspects into 
consideration. The plan commission, 
through a public hearing, will also inquire 
of the applicant how a proposed parking 
plan will adequately address each aspect 
before providing a recommendation to the 
Board of Trustees.

Niles

Parking for these ‘secondary uses’ is 
required in addition to/above-and-beyond 
what is required for just the hotel and as 
provided in Section X(B)(10) of the 
Village’s zoning ordinance for that 
particular use. 

Park Ridge

1.25 spaces per room; any other 
identifiable uses within hotel would 
be addressed per separate use 
requirement

Number of rooms; other uses 
included within hotel.

Meeting room, convention area not 
identified separately; office space = 4 
spaces per 1,000sf GFA.

Skokie

Parking must be provided based on 
code.  No fee can be charged for the 
parking. 1 space for each room.

1 space for each 100 sq. ft. of dining, 
meeting rooms and bars.  Other uses 
open to public such as retail, offices, etc. 
must provide parking based on 
requirements for the use.

Streamwood

We have general requirements in our 
zoning code but we currently do not 
have any hotels in town.

Winnetka

The Village of Winnetka does not 
have parking regulations specific to 
hotel developments. N/A. N/A.

Village Zoning Ordinance X(B)(10) provides parking requirements for 
different land-uses.  Subsection (d) states that 5 parking spaces plus one 
parking space for each guest or sleeping room or suite is required for the 
first 100 room.  One additional space for each 20 rooms over the first 100 is 
required if there are more than 100 rooms.  Secondary uses, such as 
restaurants or lounges within the hotel, require additional parking.  

2

Document 5



Page 2 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
September 24, 2018 
 
 

the Public Hearing regarding a request for a Major Amendment to the 
Lincolnshire Market place Planned Unit Development to permit existing 
Culver’s wall signs to be internally illuminated. 

  
 Mayor Brandt sore in Mr. Kevin Weasler, owner of Culver’s.  
 
 Mr. Weasler provided a presentation regarding a request for a Major 

Amendment to the Lincolnshire Market place Planned Unit Development 
to permit existing Culver’s wall signs to be internally illuminated. 

 
 Mayor Brandt noted the presentation would be entered in to the records 

as Findings of Facts. 
 
 Mayor Brandt closed the Public Hearing and reconvened the Committee 

of the Whole meeting at 7:58 p.m. 
 
 It was the consensus of the Board to place these items on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 
3.12 Preliminary Evaluation of a Petition for a Special Use Permit and 

Variance for Building Height, Front Yard Setback, Rear Yard 
Landscape/Parking Setback, and Side Yard Landscape/Parking 
Setback for Home2 Hotel by Hilton (Silva Architects, Ltd. – 350 
Knightsbridge Parkway) 

 
 Assistant Village Manager/Community & Economic Development (CED) 

Director Gilbertson provided a summary of the preliminary evaluation of 
a petition for a Special Use Permit and Variance for building height, 
front yard setback, rear yard landscape/parking setback, and side yard 
landscape/parking setback for Home2 Hotel by Hilton.  

 
 Mr. Steve Silva with Silva Architects, Ltd., representing Home2 Hilton 

provided a presentation with proposed site, elevation and landscaping 
plans regarding the preliminary evaluation of a petition for a Special Use 
Permit and Variance for building height, front yard setback, rear yard 
landscape/parking setback, and side yard landscape/parking setback for 
Home2 Hotel by Hilton. 

 
 Trustee Servi noted his interest in moving the project forward but had 

some concerns with what is being called a “beacon” at the top of the 
building. Mr. Silva stated the attention getting device known as the 
beacon would comply with the code related to lighting.  

 
 Trustee McDonough asked about parking being below grade. Mr. Silva 

noted on the south of the building there will be a driveway which goes 
down to parking below.  

 
 Mayor Brandt asked if any other sites were looked at where no variance 

would be needed, and there would not be the need to install 

Document 6

bgilbertson
Line



Page 3 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
September 24, 2018 
 
 

underground parking. Mr. Silva stated other sites were looked at, but the 
price came in around the same so it was the desire to pursue the 
proposed location. Mr. Silva noted there is still visibility from Milwaukee 
Avenue from the proposed site.  

 
 It was the consensus of the Board to refer this to the ARB and Zoning 

Board. 
 
3.13 Consideration of Permit Fee Waiver Per Section 5-3-2A of the 

Lincolnshire Village Code (Riverside Foundation) 
 
 Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson provided a summary 

of permit fee waiver request from Riverside Foundation.  
 
 It was the consensus of the Board to place these items on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 
3.14 Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Title 12 (Signs) 

Regarding Changes to Chapter 3 (Definitions), Chapter 8 (Sign 
Construction & Design: General Standards), Chapter 11 (Prohibited 
Signs), Chapter 12 (Exempt Signs, and Chapter 13 (Temporary 
Signs) (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
3.15 Consideration of Text Amendment to Chapter 2 (Definitions), and 

Chapter 3 (General Zoning Regulations, of the Lincolnshire Zoning 
Code (Title 6) Regarding Small Wireless Facilities (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 

 
 Mayor Brandt moved Items 3.14 and 3.15 down on the agenda to allow 

requests from Citizens and Village Organizations. 
 

3.2 Finance and Administration 
3.21 Receipt of Requests from Citizen and Village Organizations 

Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2019 Budget (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 

 
 Village Manager Burke provided a brief summary regarding annual 

requests from citizens and Village organizations regarding proposed 
fiscal year 2019 budget. Village Manager Burke introduced Maureen 
Reidy with Visit Lake County and Brad LaJoie who is the new General 
Manager for the Marriott Lincolnshire Resort. Ms. Reidy will be providing 
a Visit Lake County year in review. Village Manager Burke noted a 
request recently came in from the Brushwood Center and was provided 
to the Board tonight for further discussion during the budget process.  

 
 Ms. Maureen Reidy, President of Visit Lake County, provided an 

overview of Visit Lake County and what the organization does to market 
Lake County as a tourism destination, how Visit Lake County is funded, 
and current marketing strategies. Ms. Reidy presented the “Let’s Go!” 

Document 6

bgilbertson
Line



 

Agenda Item 
3.12 COW 

 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Committee of the Whole 
January 28, 2019 

 
Subject:   Single-Family Residential Bulk Regulations  

 
Action Requested: Consideration of Zoning Board Non-Recommendation Regarding 

Text Amendments to Single-Family Residential Bulk Regulations in 
Title 6, Chapters 5A (R1, R2 and R3 Single-Family Residence 
Districts) and 5B (R2A Single-Family Residence District) of the 
Lincolnshire Village Code (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 

Originated By/Contact: Ben Gilbertson, Assistant Village Manager/CED Director 
 

Referred to:  Village Board 
 

 
Background: 
Over the course of four meetings in 2017, the Village Board (Board) considered a number of 
potential changes to Village code to address bulk regulations for single-family homes in all 
residential zoning districts. Potential changes included the following zoning considerations:  
building setbacks; impervious surface area; and floor area ratio (FAR). In addition, the following 
aesthetic considerations were discussed:  landscaping, lighting, number of building materials, and 
front door orientation. At the August 7, 2017 Committee of the Whole meeting, the Board referred 
this matter to the Zoning Board (ZB) for a public hearing and to the Architectural Review Board 
(ARB) for design review and recommendations. Since referral, the ZB has discussed this matter 
on three occasions. Below are summaries of those meetings as well as ZB sentiment. 
 
February 13, 2018 Zoning Board – Public Hearing and First Consideration of Bulk 
Regulations: 
On February 13, 2018, the ZB held a public hearing to consider amendments to FAR 
measurements for single-family residential zoning districts. Based on a random sample of more 
than 600 homes across the R1, R2, R2A, and R3 zoning districts, as well as an analysis of lot 
size and floor area, staff presented the following recommendations for each residential zoning 
district. Lot and home size examples under current and proposed recommendations are shown 
in Document 1. 
 

R1 Summary  
• Staff Recommendations - Proposed Amendments 

o FAR: 0.13 (currently 0.25) 
o Maximum Lot Area: consolidated lots – 80,000 sq. ft. buildable lot allowance (no 

current cap for maximum lot area for single or consolidated lots) 
• Notes 

o These recommendations ensure no homes larger than 10,400 square feet would be 
built in R1, approximately 700 square feet larger than the largest currently existing 
home in the R1 District. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item 
3.12 COW 

 
R2 Summary 

• Staff Recommendations - Proposed Amendments 
o FAR:  

 Lots ≤ 32,000 sq. ft.: 0.15 (currently 0.25) 
 Lots ≥ 32,001 sq. ft. and ≤ 50,000 sq. ft.: 0.14 (currently 0.25) 
 Lots ≥ 50,001 sq. ft. and ≤ 55,000 sq. ft.: 0.12 (currently 0.25) 

o Maximum Lot Area: 55,000 sq. ft. (no current cap for maximum lot area) 
• Notes 

These FAR restrictions will create three non-conforming homes in the R2 district, one on 
Storybook Lane and two on Hamilton Court.  The 55,000 square foot lot cap causes four 
homes to become non-conforming lots and currently, only one of those existing homes is 
built to a FAR of over 10.5%.  All other homes in R2 meet or fall below the suggested FAR 
and maximum lot size requirements currently, and no lots as large as 308 Hamilton Court 
remain available in Lincolnshire. 
 

R2A Summary 
• Staff Recommendations - Proposed Amendments 

o FAR:  
 Lots ≤ 30,000 sq. ft.: 0.20 (currently 0.25) 
 Lots ≥ 30,001 sq. ft. and ≤ 50,000 sq. ft.: 0.15 (currently 0.25) 

o Maximum Lot Area: 50,000 sq. ft. 
• Notes 

o Staff recommended homes built through 2017 be allowed to meet current standards 
because these restrictions create nearly 25% non-conformity within the R2A district. 
These restrictions would then apply to R2A homes built in 2018 and later. 

 
R3 Summary 

• Staff Recommendations - Proposed Amendments 
o FAR:  

 Lots ≤ 16,000 sq. ft.: 0.21 (currently 0.25) 
 Lots ≥ 16,001 sq. ft. and ≤ 25,000 sq. ft.: 0.18 (currently 0.25) 
 Lots ≥ 25,001 sq. ft. and ≤ 30,000 sq. ft.: 0.16 (currently 0.25) 
 Lots ≥ 30,001 sq. ft.: 0.15 (currently 0.25) 
 Consolidated Lots: cap of 50,000 sq. ft. buildable allowance; requirements 

above apply to first lot; FAR of 0.06 for second lot up to 50,000 sq. ft. lot cap 
o Maximum Lot Area: 70,500 sq. ft. (consolidated lot) 

• Notes 
o These requirements would allow older existing homes in Lincolnshire to have a 

second-car garage built along with a screened in porch without maximizing FAR and 
still controlling for bulk in the R3 District, ideally preserving neighborhood character in 
terms of home sizes and bulk. The proposed FAR schedule also addresses existing 
homes that would otherwise become existing non-conforming on smaller lots. Based 
on data analysis, making these requirements more restrictive would significantly affect 
hundreds of homes throughout the zoning district by either creating non-conformities 
or precluding home owners from being able to add a second car garage or a screened 
in porch. 

 
Based on the analysis presented by staff, the ZB expressed the following concerns: 

1) The construction of one home on a double lot motivated discussion of more stringent bulk 
regulations; 

2) The use of one metric (FAR) was insufficient for bulk regulation; and 



 

Agenda Item 
3.12 COW 

 
3) Reducing FAR thresholds in single-family residential zoning districts would preclude 

current homeowners from additions to their homes and thus hamper future marketability. 
Buyers may also be deterred from purchasing properties in Lincolnshire with no expansion 
potential. 

 
The ZB closed the public hearing with the intent to continue discussion at their next meeting, as 
they were not ready to approve and recommend text amendments. The ZB also stated they were 
not ready for a joint meeting with the ARB, as was the original intent when the matter was first 
referred to both advisory boards. 
 
September 12, 2018 Zoning Board – Second Consideration of Bulk Regulations: 
At the September 12, 2018 ZB meeting, the ZB discussed staff’s recommended text amendments 
once again. The general consensus of the ZB was they did not see a need for changes to bulk 
regulations based on the FAR information provided by staff. As such, the ZB did not want to 
discuss the matter again.  Additionally, the ZB said they did not see a need for a joint meeting 
with the ARB.  However, no motion was made for a non-favorable recommendation to the Village 
Board. 
 
January 8, 2019 Zoning Board – Third Consideration of Bulk Regulations and 
Recommendation: 
At the January 8, 2019 ZB meeting, the ZB reaffirmed their opposition to the recommended FAR 
reductions. Specifically, they stated: 
 

1) The proposed regulations would disproportionally affect the R3 district. 
2) The current regulations in place are sufficient to address bulk regulations. 

 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the bulk regulation recommendations first 
presented at the February 2018 public hearing; however, the motion failed by a roll call vote with 
the ZB unanimously voting against the reduced FAR recommendations. 
 
Points of Consideration and Staff Recommendation 
Although the ZB originally committed to making a joint recommendation with the ARB to Village 
Board regarding bulk regulations, the timing of when the ARB would make their recommendations 
to the Board is unknown. Therefore, staff is presenting the zoning component of bulk regulations 
for the Village Board’s consideration. The Village Board may elect to do one or more of the 
following: 
 

1) Vote to overturn the ZB’s non-recommendation and approve the FAR reductions; 
2) Direct staff to conduct additional research on FAR or other zoning bulk regulations; or 
3) Conclude consideration of zoning bulk regulations. 

  
Per Section 2-6-5 of the Village Code, “An application which fails to receive an approval 
recommendation of the Zoning Board must include written findings based upon the items set forth 
in Chapter 14 of Title 6 and must receive a favorable vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all the elected 
members of the Village Board of Trustees to be approved.”  Specifically, the standards for text 
amendment findings of fact are as follows: 
 

1) The request for an amendment shall serve the purpose of promoting the public health, 
safety, and general welfare. 

2) The request for an amendment shall conserve the value of property throughout the 
community. 



 

Agenda Item 
3.12 COW 

 
3) The request for an amendment shall lessen or avoid congestion in the public streets and 

highways. 
 
Staff has prepared responses to these standards based on previous discussion and direction from 
the Village Board (see Document 2). These findings were presented to the Zoning Board at their 
January 8, 2019 meeting. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
• Document 1: Home and lot size examples with proposed text amendments. 
• Document 2: Findings of Fact – Text Amendment. 
• Document 3: Unapproved minutes from the January 8, 2019 Zoning Board meeting. 

 
 

Meeting History 

Committee of the Whole Discussion 

January 9, 2017 
February 27, 2017 

May 8, 2017 
August 7, 2017 

January 28, 2019 

Architectural Review Board 

November 8, 2017 
November 21, 2017 
January 16, 2018 

September 4, 2018 

Zoning Board 
February 13, 2018 

September 12, 2018 
January 8, 2019 

 



R1 BULK REGULATIONS - CURRENT & PROPOSED 
Current Proposed 

Lot Requirements 
Minimum Area (sq. ft.) 80,000 - 
Maximum Area (sq. ft.) 

- 
80,000 sq. ft.  

(buildable allowance; no lot 
size cap) 

Minimum Width 150' - 
Maximum Impervious Area 30% of gross lot area - 

Yard Requirements ` 
Front ≥ 50’ - 
Side ≥ 30’ - 
Rear ≥ 50’ - 
Corner Side ≥ 20’ - 

Structure Requirements 
Maximum Height 2.5 stories / 40' - 
Floor Area Ratio 0.25 0.13 
Building Side Setback Plane 45° @ 10' above lot line - 

R1 HOME & LOT SIZE COMPARISONS 
Example 

Lot Size 
(sq. ft.) 

Current 
FAR 

Proposed 
FAR 

Maximum Home Size 
Current FAR (sq. ft.) 

Maximum Home Size 
Proposed FAR (sq. ft.) 

  80,000  0.25  0.13  20,000  10,400 

Document 1



R2 BULK REGULATIONS - CURRENT & PROPOSED 
Current Proposed 

Lot Requirements 
Minimum Area (sq. ft.) 40,000 sq. ft. - 
Maximum Area (sq. ft.) - ≤ 55,000 sq. ft. 
Minimum Width 120' - 
Maximum Impervious Area 35% of gross lot area - 

Yard Requirements 
Front ≥ 40’ and ≤ 80’ - 
Side ≥ 20’ - 
Rear ≥ 40’ - 
Corner Side ≥ 20’ - 

Structure Requirements 
Maximum Height 2.5 stories / 35' - 
Floor Area Ratio 

Lots ≤ 32,000 sq. ft. 0.25 0.15 
Lots ≥ 32,001 sq. ft. and ≤ 50,000 sq. ft. 0.25 0.14 
Lots ≥ 50,001 sq. ft. and ≤ 55,000 sq. ft. 0.25 0.12 

Building Side Setback Plane 45° @ 10' above lot line - 

R2 HOME & LOT SIZE COMPARISONS 
Example 

Lot 
Size 

(sq. ft.) 

Current 
FAR 

Proposed 
FAR 

Existing Home Size 
Range (sq. ft.) 

Maximum Home 
Size 

Current FAR 
(sq. ft.) 

Maximum Home 
Size 

Proposed FAR 
(sq. ft.) 

32,000 0.25 0.15 1,288 8,000 4,800 
50,000 0.25 0.14 1,950 - 6,807 12,500 7,000 
65,000 0.25 0.12 1,306 - 6,834 16,250 7,800 
98,324 0.25 0.12 22,425 24,581 11,799 

Document 1



R2A BULK REGULATIONS - CURRENT & PROPOSED 
Current Proposed 

Lot Requirements 
Minimum Area (sq. ft.) 20,000 sq. ft. - 
Maximum Area (sq. ft.) - 50,000 
Minimum Width 100' - 
Maximum Impervious Area 40% gross lot area* - 

Yard Requirements 
Front and Side abuttting street 20' - 
Side 10' - 
Rear 35' - 
Corner Side 20' - 

Structure Requirements 
Maximum Height 2.5 stories / 35’ - 
Floor Area Ratio 

Lots ≤ 30,000 sq. ft. 0.25 0.20 
Lots ≥ 30,001 sq. ft. and ≤ 50,000 sq. ft. 0.25 0.15 

Building Side Setback Plane 45° @ 10' above lot line - 
*Impervious area not listed in Zoning Code. Recommendation of ≤ 40% gross lot area was
part of staff's 2007 recommendation but was not included in the ordinance.

R2A HOME & LOT SIZE COMPARISONS 
Example 

Lot Size 
(sq. ft.) 

Current 
FAR 

Proposed 
FAR 

Maximum Home Size 
Current FAR (sq. ft.) 

Maximum Home Size 
Proposed FAR (sq. ft.) 

20,000 0.25 0.20 5,000 4,000 
30,000 0.25 0.20 7,500 6,000 
50,000 0.25 0.15 12,500 7,500 

Document 1



R3 BULK REGULATIONS - CURRENT & PROPOSED 
Current Proposed 

Lot Requirements 
Minimum Area (sq. ft.) 20,000 - 
Maximum Area (sq. ft.) - 70,500 

(consolidated lot) 
Minimum Width 100' - 
Maximum Impervious Area 40% of gross lot 

area 
- 

Yard Requirements 
Front ≥ 30’ and ≤ 80’ - 
Side ≥ 10’ - 
Rear ≥ 30’ - 
Corner Side ≥ 20’ - 

Structure Requirements 
Maximum Height 2 stories / 30' - 
Floor Area Ratio 

Lots ≤ 16,000 sq. ft. 0.25 0.21 
Lots ≥ 16,001 sq. ft. and ≤ 25,000 sq. ft. 0.25 0.18 
Lots ≥ 25,001 sq. ft. and ≤ 30,000 sq. ft. 0.25 0.16 
Lots ≥ 30,001 sq. ft. 0.25 0.15 
Consolidated Lots 0.25 • Maximum 50,000

sq. ft. buildable
allowance
• Requirements
above apply to first
lot
• Maximum FAR of
0.06 for second lot
up to 50,000 sq. ft.

Building Side Setback Plane 45° @ 10' above 
lot line 

- 

R3 HOME & LOT SIZE COMPARISONS 
Example 

Lot Size 
(sq. ft.) 

Current 
FAR 

Proposed 
FAR 

Maximum Home Size 
Current FAR (sq. ft.) 

Maximum Home Size 
Proposed FAR (sq. ft.) 

16,000*** 0.25 0.21 4,000 3,360 
25,000*** 0.25 0.18 6,250 4,500 
30,000*** 0.25 0.16 7,500 4,800 
35,000*** 0.25 0.15 8,750 5,250 
40,000*** 0.25 0.18 10,000 4,800 
70,500*** 0.25 0.15 17,625 6,366 
*Largest buildable lot
**Typical consolidated lot 
***Large consolidated lot 

Document 1



FINDINGS OF FACT TEXT AMENDMENT 
Village of Lincolnshire – Bulk Regulations – Zoning 

1. The request for an amendment shall serve the purpose of promoting the public health,
safety, and general welfare.

The request is to codify single-family residential bulk regulations with respect 
to floor area ratio (FAR) requirements. Reductions in FAR across the R1, R2, 
R2A, and R3 zoning districts will reduce potential home sizes for replacement 
homes, or “teardowns,” and ensure cohesive “neighborhood character” 
within each zoning district. Analysis of single family residential lot and home 
square footage data reveal minimal impact to existing homes that would 
become non-conforming were the proposed text amendments approved. With 
approval of these proposed text amendments, the general welfare of Village 
residents would be promoted via cohesive “neighborhood character” by way 
of reduced FAR single-family zoning requirements. 

2. The request for an amendment shall conserve the value of property throughout the
community.

The proposed amendments to FAR requirements would conserve property 
values throughout the community by ensuring predictable, consistent home 
sizes that contribute to “neighborhood character” and deter the construction of 
new homes which are disproportionate to and inconsistent with such 
established character and which diminish the property values of adjoining 
homes which are negatively affected thereby. The proposed FAR requirements 
would allow existing homes and structures in the residential zoning districts to 
remain intact with the creation of few non-conforming uses. These amendments 
would promote consistency in home sizes and preservation of property values. 

3. The request for an amendment shall lessen or avoid congestion in the public streets
and highways.

The request will have no bearing on congestion in public streets and 
highways. 

Prepared by: 
Ben Gilbertson, Assistant Village Manager/CED Director, Village of Lincolnshire 

Document 2



O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
w w w . l i n c o l n s h i r e i l . g o v  

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ZONING BOARD\MINUTES\2019\2018_01_08_ZB_Minutes_Unapproved.doc

UNAPPROVED Minutes of the REGULAR MEETING OF THE ZONING BOARD held on
Tuesday, January 8, 2019 in the Public Meeting Room in the Village Hall,
One Olde Half Day Road, Lincolnshire, IL

PRESENT: Chair Bichkoff and Members Hashemi, Udoni, Kalina, and Hersh

STAFF PRESENT: Ben Gilbertson, Assistant Village Manager/Community & Economic
Development Director
Tonya Zozulya, Planning and Development Manager

ABSENT: Trustee Liaison McDonough.

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Bichkoff called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.

1.0 ROLL CALL
The roll was called by Ben Gilbertson, Assistant Village Manager/Community and
Economic Development Director (AVM/CED); Chair Bichkoff declared a quorum to
be present.

2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

2.1 Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Zoning Board Meeting Held on November
13, 2018.

Chair Bickhoff noted scrivener’s errors and provided those to staff.

Member Udoni moved and Member Hersh seconded the motion to approve the
minutes as noted and amended by Chair Bichkoff. Motion passed by voice vote.

3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS

3.1  Consideration of Text Amendments Regarding Single-Family Residential Bulk
Regulations in Title 6, Chapters 5A (R1, R2 and R3 Single-Family Residence
Districts) and 5B (R2A Single-Family Residence District) of the Lincolnshire
Village Code (Village of Lincolnshire)

AVM/CED Gilbertson provided background and an overview of this agenda
item, noting the most recent deliberation by the Zoning Board was September
2018. At that meeting, it was the consensus of the Zoning Board, having taken
into consideration current Floor Area Ratio (F.A.R.) regulations, to recommend
against additional text amendments to the Zoning Code for bulk regulations in
residential districts; however, a formal motion from the Zoning Board to make a
non-recommendation to the Village Board was not made.

Member Hashemi, noting the presence of an audience, requested staff to
provide additional background on the item. AVM/CED Gilbertson provided
history on bulk regulations, how the issue came to the Village Board’s attention
as well as how they saw a need to address bulk regulations through zoning and
architectural requirements. He further described the Zoning Board’s concerns of

Document 3

bgilbertson
Line



Zoning Board Meeting 01/08/19 
Page 2  
 

2 
 

the analysis presented at the February 2018 public hearing and the possible 
consequences of reducing FAR requirements, noting the reduction in F.A.R may 
preclude owners of older, smaller homes from constructing future additions. 
Member Kalina and Chair Bichkoff further articulated the Zoning Board’s prior 
concern, stating F.A.R. revisions were not necessary and unsubstantiated, 
adding the consensus of the Zoning Board was current regulations are sufficient.  
 
Member Hashemi stated she has had conversations with residents in which they 
indicated the decision to propose changes to the current regulations are not 
based on fact. She added concerns about perceived impacts on property values.  
 
Tonya Zozulya, Planning and Development Manager (PDM) requested the 
Zoning Board provide details of their recommendation and outline their reasoning 
when they make their formal motion. 

 
Member Hashemi drew attention to the number of meetings dedicated to zoning 
bulk regulations, staff time, and resources dedicated to this. She said the Village 
would have been better served looking for new business to come to the Village. 
 
Member Hersh asked if there were other reasons for the Village Board’s 
concerns. AVM/CED Gilbertson stated the Village Board also had concerns 
regarding teardowns in older areas of town and preservation of “neighborhood 
character.” 
 
Chair Bichkoff, noting the presence of an audience, elected to take Citizen 
Comments on this agenda item rather than wait until the end of the meeting.  
 
Darek Zarnovski of 72 Cumberland stated he has lived in his home for 17 years. 
He expressed concern this was the first time he was aware of the proposed 
changes and noted the lack of notification to residents in Lincolnshire regarding 
these discussions. As an architect, he noted current design trends are not for 
larger homes, as they are expensive to build.  
 
There was lengthy discussion amongst the Zoning Board that homes in the R3 
District would be most impacted by the proposed F.A.R., making many existing 
homes non-compliant and not allowing for future additions. PDM Zozulya, in 
response to a question from Mr. Zarnovski, said there are many regulations 
beyond F.A.R. in the residential zoning code that currently control for bulk 
regulations. Members of the Zoning Board reaffirmed their position that current 
regulations are sufficient and there was no need to make the code more 
restrictive. 
 
Member Udoni moved, seconded by Member Hersh, having conducted and 
concluded a Public Hearing on February 13, 2018 and considered the proposed 
amendments on September 12 and January 8, 2019, to approve and recommend 
amendments to the Village Code regarding bulk regulations in Title 6, Chapters 
5A and 5B. 
 
Roll Call Vote: Ayes - None 

Nayes - Chair Bichkoff, Members Kalina, Udoni, Hersh and 
Hashemi.  
Motion Failed. 

Document 3



Zoning Board Meeting 01/08/19 
Page 3  

3 

Chair Bichkoff reaffirmed the Zoning Board’s position based on consideration of 
the matter over several meetings and inability to find an argument in favor of the 
proposed amendments and noted the following concerns: 

• Proposed regulations would disproportionally affect the R3 district.
• Current regulations in place are sufficient to address bulk.

3.2 Approval of 2019 Zoning Board Calendar and Meeting Schedule (Village of 
Lincolnshire)  

AVM/CED Gilbertson stated the Illinois Open Meetings Act requires advisory 
boards to approve their meeting schedule and calendar prior to or at the first 
meeting of the year. AVM/CED Gilbertson reviewed the 2019 dates for the 
Zoning Board meeting schedule. 

Member Udoni moved and Member Kalina seconded approval of the 2019 
Zoning Board meeting dates as prepared by staff.  The Motion passed 
unanimously by voice vote.  

4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None. 

5.0 NEW BUSINESS – None. 

6.0 CITIZENS COMMENTS 

Sandra Saltiel, 26 Regent Lane, inquired about the 325 Marriot Drive building under 
construction, asking how the Village allowed the construction of a warehouse so close to 
Route 22. Member Hashemi stated the Zoning Board and Village Board approved a 
rezoning of this property, adding the office vacancy rate in the area was not conducive 
for another office building. She stated the Zoning Board, Architectural Review Board, 
and Village Board made sure that additional improvements to the building exterior and 
landscape were included to enhance the site. Chair Bichkoff, in response to Sandra 
Saltiel’s comments about the appearance of the building, noted that this will be a 
corporate headquarters and having seen the renderings, it will look much different. He 
further noted this site has been on the market for over 30 years, and the Village believed 
this would be a productive use for the site. AVM/CED Gilbertson provided background 
on the review of the building and landscape design, including the requirement to add a 
landscape berm along the north elevation, screening of the docks along the east 
elevation, and a significant investment in the landscape plan. Staff stated they would 
provide residents with additional information via email. 

Scott Mackenzie, 23 Londonderry Lane, inquired about the property referred to as the 
TSJ/Top Golf project, asking what happened to the Top Golf. Chair Bichkoff stated this 
proposal was never referred to the Zoning Board as it is under the purview of the Village 
Board, but that the Top Golf proposal was removed from the project. Scott Mackenzie 
said it would have been a good source of tax revenue for the Village. AVM/CED 
Gilbertson said there was much feedback from the community about Top Golf’s plan, 
with residents indicating concerns for traffic and lighting. He added the Village Board 
retains review authority over the use of the property as it is zoned B-2 Planned Unit 
Development, with the only known user of the property at this time being The St. James. 

Document 3

bgilbertson
Line



 
 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING  

January 28, 2019 
 

Subject:  Consideration of a Request to Authorize Purchase a John Deere 
324G Skid Steer (Replacing Public Works Vehicle #320) via 
Sourcewell Joint Purchase Program from Westside Tractors, 
Wauconda, IL in an Amount not to Exceed $90,000 (Village of 
Lincolnshire)   

 
Action Requested: 

 
Consideration and Placement on the February 11, 2019 Consent 
Agenda for Approval. 

 
Originated By/Contact: 

 
Bradford H. Woodbury, Public Works Director 
Matt Liewehr, Fleet Foreman   

 
Referred To:  

 
Village Board  

 
Summary / Background: 
The Public Works Department requests replacement of a 2012 JCB 515-40 Load All Unit  
(Public Works Vehicle #320). The Skid Steer is a versatile machine and is located primarily out 
of 45 Londonderry. It is used for loading numerous materials into equipment such as dirt, spoil, 
sand, gravel and is also used to push up leaves during leaf season. The unit’s fork attachment 
is used for moving palletized material around the storage yard and to accept deliveries from 
trucks as needed. A sweeper attachment is used for sweeping bike paths or small spots in the 
road affected by flooding.  
 
The current machine is limited in the work it can perform and is simply the wrong machine for 
the Public Works Department. With more of an emphasis on bike path and snow removal in the 
Village, the current machine is not capable of running key implements for snow removal. 
Besides snow removal, the existing unit is not useful for hazardous tree removals. Village Staff 
plans to purchase an auger, nursery forks, brush cutter and a stump grinder so Public Works 
Staff can play a bigger role in planting trees in-house as well as removing stumps. Additionally, 
this recommendation includes the purchase of a snow blower attachment to allow crews to get 
through the heavier snow on bike paths located closer to Rt. 22. The current unit lacks the 
power needed to run these various bucket attachments. The manufacturer of the current 
machine does not have mobile repair technicians available. If the machine breaks down and 
cannot be repaired by Staff, the machine must be trailered or towed to a facility for repairs. Parts 
from the manufacturer also have a history of extended lead time for delivery. These issues lead 
to considerably longer down time for the unit.  
 
The existing unit is 8-years old and has over 514 hours on it. Staff feels the replacement of the 
2012 JCB Loader with 514 hours will achieve the best re-sale value of $23,000.00. Rental Rates 
for this type of equipment range from $300/day to $1,000/week plus the cost of any specialized 
attachments. Availability is also unpredictable due to the nature of construction season. 
Additionally, if an emergency arises after hours, there is not time to secure a rental unit.  
 

 

Agenda Item 
3.31 COW 

 



 
While reviewing various purchase options, Village staff obtained the Sourcewell Joint 
Purchasing (formerly NJPA) Contract # 032515-JDC awarded to the John Deere Company.  
The Village of Lincolnshire may utilize the Sourcewell Contract as this is competitively bid, and 
the Village Board previously authorized participating in the Sourcewell in February 2012.  
Westside Tractors of Wauconda, IL is the approved Sourcewell vender through the end of 2019.  
Staff anticipates the total cost for a new replacement Skid Steer Loader to be less than 
$90,000.00 (including $23,000 trade-in of the 2012 JCB Load All unit). Below is a table detailing 
the purchase price of this unit including trade-in value.  
 

Unit Description List Price Trade In Value Total Cost 
2019 John Deere 
324G Skid Steer  

$102,754.54 ($23,000) $79,754.54 

 
Budget Impact: The 2019 Budget includes $90,000.00 in the General Capital Fund Vehicle 
Replacement Account #51-21-80-3320 for this purchase. Staff anticipates the final number to be 
under budget. Westside Tractors of Wauconda, IL is the approved vendor through the 
Sourcewell cooperative purchasing contract.  
 
Service Delivery Impact: The proposed John Deere Skid Steer is a critical piece of equipment 
which will further enhance Public Works operations in total.  
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of this purchase of the John Deere 324G Skid 
Steer through Westside Tractor Sales Co. through the Sourcewell cooperative purchasing 
contract in an amount not to exceed $90,000.00 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

• November 19, 2018 Westside Tractors Price Quote 
• Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Contract  

Meeting History 
Initial Referral to Village Board (COW): January 28, 2019 

 
 
 

 



All the prices in the detailed sections are Per machine basis.

Machine Configuration

Code Unit Price

00C0T            42,143.00 

800  IN BASE 

953              3,600.00 

1050              1,608.00 

1301              2,613.00 

1501                     0.01 

1741                     0.01 

2315              1,644.00 

3005              3,058.00 

4001                 212.00 

5001                 724.00 

5204              4,473.00 

5550                 900.00 

6006                 625.00 

6501                 830.00 

8042                 850.00 

8050                 303.00 

8075                 159.00 

8225                 328.00 

8342                 600.00 

8355                   87.00 

8370                 486.00 

8380                 144.00 

8395                 399.00 

0                         -   

 $        65,786.02 

 $        21,709.39 

 $        44,076.63 

Custom Jobs

REAR VIEW CAMERA

REVERSING FAN DRIVE

AIR RIDE SEAT (CLOTH W HEAT)

1

SIDE MIRROR MOUNT ON BOOM

RADIO AM/FM W/BLUETOOTH

CHROME EXHAUST

HAZARD WARNING LIGHTS

COLD START PACKAGE 110V

0

KEYLESS START

FOOTREST WITH FLOORMAT

HD REAR GRILLE 1

1

1

1

1

2018 John Deere 324G Skid Steers

List Price

Discount 33%

Net Price

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

NO PACKAGE 1

ISO SWITCHABLE CTLS & JS PPK 1

TWO SPEED SKID STEER 1

1

1

1

1

1

MATT LIEWEHR November 19, 2018

LINCOLNSHIRE, VILLAGE OF

1 OLDE HALF DAY ROAD

LINCOLNSHIRE, IL

LESS JDLINK

ENGLISH OP MAN & DECALS

ENGINE TURBO 4TNV98CT

DELUXE LIGHTING PACKAGE

CAB W/ HEAT, DEFROST & AIR

POWER QUIK TATCH

2" SEAT BELT W/SHOULDERSTRAP

HYD HI FL & EH SELF & RC

TIRES 12X16.5 NHS, CAMSO SKS

8478838600

SOURCEWELL Cooperative Contract 032515-JDC.

Description Qty

324G SKID STEER LOADER BASE 1



Code Price

755.80 

600.00 

1,834.91 

Ext Warranty              2,249.24 

BYT10048                 270.22 

BYT10680                   65.02 

KV23689                 395.20 

9550T            10,798.88 

1003                 328.00 

0AS0T              4,793.18 

AT436025                 120.57 

AT436525                 178.34 

AT436720                 422.00 

24710              3,027.91 

PALADIN                 971.00 

PALADIN              3,144.48 

PALADIN              7,881.15 

BRADCO                 818.00 

PALADIN              9,270.00 

PALADIN              3,510.00 

PALADIN              4,285.00 

B. DIAMOND              2,325.00 

 $        58,043.90 

Total Net Price Quantity (1)

23,000.00        

Net Price less Trade-Ins 79,745.54$      

Warranty Terms

324G includes 24 Mos Full Machine Warranty or 2000 hrs whichever occurs first

• Extended 36 mos 3000 hr full machine warranty Warranty Machine Only  

Remarks:

9" AUGER BIT 1

1

1

1

1

This unit qualifies for a municipal lease: APR 4.5% 

Less Trade-in

2012 JCB 515-40 with 553 hours

STUMP GRINDER 1

Total  Price

Quote Summary  (per unit)

AUGER DRIVE WITH 36" TREE BIT

HYDRAULIC NURSERY FORKS 1

1

SMV SIGN KIT 1

102,745.54$           

MP78B MULTI PURPOSE BUCKET 1

BOOM MOUNTED HOSE GUIDE KIT 1

12 X 16.5 T HD2000 1

SB 72 HI FLOW SNOW BLOWER 1

SB WIRE HARNESS EH CONTROL 1

1SS WALK THROUGH FORKS 48"

GROUND SHARK XD SS BRUSH CUTTER

72" UTILITY BRUSH GRAPPLE

72" V_BLADE SNOW PLOW

25 TON SS MOUNT LOG SPLITTER

BEACON WARNING FIELD KIT 1

Please note that this quote is valid for 30 days. Purchase cards are accepted -- a 3% transaction fee will 

be calculated into the PO total for the credit card invoice payment.

Chris Mazzoni - Sales Representative West Side Tractor Sales -  (847) 526-7700 • Fax (847) 526-3565 - 

Cmazzoni@westsidetractorsales.com

Price per Machine  $           102,120.54 

Destination Freight Charge

Wauconda, IL 60084  $                                                                              625.00 

Item Description Prices

Machine Net Price  $                44,076.63 

Custom Jobs  $                58,043.90 

BOLT ON SIDE CUTTERS 1

MP78 SPILL GUARD 1

• Extended 36 mos 3000 hr full machine warranty Warranty 1

1

1

1

Description Qty

Dlr provide Pre-Delivery Inspection, Supplies and Fuel Fill

Dealer Provided Delivery

Labor for field installed kits







 

Agenda Item 
3.32 COW 

 
 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Regular Village Board Meeting 

January 28, 2019 
 

Subject:  Award of a Contract for the Replacement of the Eastside Reservoir 
Emergency Generator with Altorfer Power Systems, Elmhurst, IL. In 
the Amount Not to Exceed $160,866.92 (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
Action Requested: 

 
Consideration, Discussion, and Approval 

 
Originated By/Contact: 

 
Bradford H. Woodbury, Public Works Director 
Matt Liewehr, Fleet Servicer 

 
Referred To:  

 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 

 
Summary / Background: The Eastside Reservoir Emergency Generator is located on the east 
side of the Village on Westminster Way and was installed on February 15th, 1983.  Standby 
generators are a federal requirement of the Environmental Protection Agency regarding drinking 
water systems.  This requirement ensures the pump station continues to pump and provide 
drinking water to the Village even in the event of a power failure. Additionally, this generator 
ensures proper water pressure is maintained in the event there is a fire within this area of the 
Village. The generator is in need of replacement. The generator is 34 years old and beyond its 
life expectancy of 20 to 30 years.  Manufacturer replacement parts are not available, causing 
staff to rely on parts having to be re-built and reinstalled on the generator to keep functioning. 
The cost of re-building such parts has not been cost-effective as identifying contractual service 
companies to provide these services has proven to be extremely difficult. Sourcewell is a 
National Joint Purchasing Agency (formerly NJPA) and has provided a price quote of 
$160,866.92 for the replacement of the unit via Althorher Power Systems, Elmhurst, Illinois.  
 
Budget Impact: There is currently $175,000.00 included in the 2019 FY Budget for 
replacement of this generator. 
 
Service Delivery Impact: The Emergency Generator at the Eastside Reservoir is essential for 
providing drinking water and also ensures adequate water pressure for firefighting efforts in the 
event of an electrical power failure. The Environmental Protection Agency mandates having a 
standby generator. 
 
Recommendation: Altorfer Power Systems of Elmhurst, IL, is the low bid contractor holding the 
Sourcewell (formerly NJPA) cooperative joint purchasing contract (#080613) for this generator. 
This contract meets all competitive bidding requirements. This contractor is qualified and has 
most recently replaced the Westside Reservoir generator in 2017. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

• August 14, 2018 Altorfer Power Systems Quote 
• Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Contract 

 
Meeting History 

Initial Referral to Village Board (COW): January 28, 2018 
 

 



  
 
 
 

Grayslake Oglesby Rockford Hammond
   
205 South Route 83 590 Mayer Street 5055 South Main St. 6400 Indianapolis Blvd. 
Grayslake, Illinois 60030 Oglesby, Illinois 61348 Rockford, Illinois 61102 Hammond, Indiana 46320 
847.548.1177 815.883.3336  815.965.8631  219.932.6600  
847.548.1166 fax 815.883.8043 fax 815.965.1179 fax 219.932.1121 fax 

1 

1 

Power Systems 
615 W. Lake Street 
Elmhurst, Illinois 60126 
630.530.2200 
630.530.0998 fax 
630.530.2218 service fax 
 

 
August 14, 2018 
Reference #: RS30486170 
Sourcewell Contract #080613-CAT 
 
Submitted to:  Matt Liewehr @ Village of Lincolnshire 
 
Project Name: Replacement of Existing 250kW Generator w/ Installation 
 

We submit to you Patten Power System’s quotation for the Caterpillar model C9 engine driven generator set and 
accessories.  This offer is to sell one new Caterpillar generator set rated for 250 kilowatts at 0.8 Power Factor suitable 
for standby use.  This system includes the standard accessories provided by Caterpillar with optional peripheral 
equipment and services as identified in this proposal through our interpretation of the project requirements. 
 
Top-level equipment and services offerings provided under this proposal: 
 
• One (1) Caterpillar Diesel Fueled 250kW, 480V, UL2200, Standby Rated Generator  
• One (1) 25-gallon Day Tank for Secondary Fuel Containment 
• Contractor Installation 
• Temporary Caterpillar Generator Rental  - Standby Only (1 month) 
• Start-up and On-site Load Bank Services 
 
Additionally, we have detailed the equipment configuration and services relative to our understanding of these 
requirements in the body of this document. Please check it for correctness and completeness to be certain that it meets 
your needs. Please contact us for any clarifications or refinements that may be necessary to meet the scope of the 
project, as you understand it. 
 
At the conclusion of this quote you will find the quoted price and additional commercial related information regarding 
the terms of this sale. Thank you for considering Patten Power Systems and the opportunity to provide your equipment 
and service needs. We are firmly committed to providing the best possible support and service during the life cycle of 
this project. 

Sincerely, 

Roopali Singh 
Sales Engineer 
(630) 330-2238 

 
 



  
 
 
 

Grayslake Oglesby Rockford Hammond
   
205 South Route 83 590 Mayer Street 5055 South Main St. 6400 Indianapolis Blvd. 
Grayslake, Illinois 60030 Oglesby, Illinois 61348 Rockford, Illinois 61102 Hammond, Indiana 46320 
847.548.1177 815.883.3336  815.965.8631  219.932.6600  
847.548.1166 fax 815.883.8043 fax 815.965.1179 fax 219.932.1121 fax 

2 

2 

Power Systems 
615 W. Lake Street 
Elmhurst, Illinois 60126 
630.530.2200 
630.530.0998 fax 
630.530.2218 service fax 
 

 
Standard Equipment Caterpillar 250 kW:  
 
Engine 
 One New Caterpillar Model C9 ACERT diesel engine, turbocharged ATAAC aspirated, in-line 6 cylinder 
 Emission control engine, Tier 3 certified,  
 ADEM A4 electronic governor 
 Engine mounted light duty air filter with restriction indicator 

Generator 
 Caterpillar 250 kW generator, standby rated, engine mounted and tested at the Caterpillar factory, 2/3rd pitch, Class 

H Insulation, .8 power factor, 3 phase, 4 wire 
 Permanent magnet excited generator 
 Integral voltage regulator 

EMCP 4.2 Digital Control Panel 
Instrumentation 
 LCD display with adjustable contrast and backlight with auto power off 
 AC metering: Volts 3-phase (L-L & L-N); Amps (per phase & average); Frequency; kW (total & per phase);kVA 

(total & per phase); kVAr (total & per phase); Power Factor (overall & per phase); kW hours; kVAr hours 
 DC metering: Battery Volts; Engine hours run; Engine Jacket Water Temperature (in °C or °F); 

Lube oil pressure (in psi, kPa or bar); Engine speed (rpm); Crank attempt counter; Start counter 
Protection 
 Fail to start shutdown 
 Low oil pressure shutdown 
 High engine temperature 
 Approaching high coolant temperature alarm 
 Approaching low oil pressure alarm 
 Not in auto mode alarm 
 Underspeed/Overspeed 
 Loss of engine speed detection 
 Low/High battery voltage 
 Battery charger failure (if fitted) 
 Under volts, over volts 
 Under frequency, over frequency 
 Overcurrent 
 4 Spare Channels 
 20 event fault log (name of event, engine hours at first occurrence of event, time stamp at first occurrence, engine 

hours at latest occurrence of event, time stamp at latest occurrence, number of occurrences of event) 
Controls 
 2 LED status indicators (1 red shutdown, 1 amber warning) 
 Run key and LED indicator 
 Auto key and LED indicator 
 Stop key and LED indicator 
 Lamp test key 
 Alarm acknowledge key 
 Menu navigation keys 
 Engine and AC metering shortcut keys 



  
 
 
 

Grayslake Oglesby Rockford Hammond
   
205 South Route 83 590 Mayer Street 5055 South Main St. 6400 Indianapolis Blvd. 
Grayslake, Illinois 60030 Oglesby, Illinois 61348 Rockford, Illinois 61102 Hammond, Indiana 46320 
847.548.1177 815.883.3336  815.965.8631  219.932.6600  
847.548.1166 fax 815.883.8043 fax 815.965.1179 fax 219.932.1121 fax 

3 

3 

Power Systems 
615 W. Lake Street 
Elmhurst, Illinois 60126 
630.530.2200 
630.530.0998 fax 
630.530.2218 service fax 
 

 
 All control module keys have tactile feedback 
 Lock down emergency stop push button. 
 Real time clock. 
 Service interval counter. 
 CAN 2 accessory data link – for additional modules: remote annunciator, discrete input/output module. 
 Modbus communications on 2 wire half duplex RS485 connection for remote customer monitoring. 

Lube System 
 Lubricating oil and filter 
 Oil drain line with valve piped to edge of base 
 Fumes disposal piped to front of radiator 
 Lube oil level indicator 

Cooling System 
 Radiator with guard (508C) 
 Fuel cooler 
 Coolant drain line with valve 
 Fan and belt guards 
 Caterpillar extended life coolant 
 Coolant level sensors 
 2kW Jacket water heater 

Mounting System 
 Formed steel wide base frame 
 Linear vibration isolation 

Starting System 
 Single 24 volt starting motor 
 24 volt lead acid battery with rack and cables 
 10 Amps battery charger 
 45 amp charging alternator 

General       
 UL listed 600A 100% rated UL circuit breaker w/ shunt trip 
 First fill lubricating oil 
 First fill antifreeze, installed 
 PGS Test Report @ 0.8 PF as per CAT Factory standards 
 Certified Caterpillar tests, non-witnessed at 0.8 power factor per NFPA 
 (1) O & M Manuals 

 
  
 
 



  
 
 
 

Grayslake Oglesby Rockford Hammond
   
205 South Route 83 590 Mayer Street 5055 South Main St. 6400 Indianapolis Blvd. 
Grayslake, Illinois 60030 Oglesby, Illinois 61348 Rockford, Illinois 61102 Hammond, Indiana 46320 
847.548.1177 815.883.3336  815.965.8631  219.932.6600  
847.548.1166 fax 815.883.8043 fax 815.965.1179 fax 219.932.1121 fax 

4 

4 

Power Systems 
615 W. Lake Street 
Elmhurst, Illinois 60126 
630.530.2200 
630.530.0998 fax 
630.530.2218 service fax 
 

 
Contractor Electrical Installation (Homestead) 
We propose to furnish labor and material to complete the following electrical work indicated to us on our project walk 
through. 

 
 INCLUSIONS:  

• Provide temporary electrical connections for a temporary generator provided by Altorfer Cat  
• Removal of the existing generator, muffler, exhaust piping, air intake duct work, fuel lines, fuel day tank. Includes 
trucking to bring the existing generator to Altorfer Caterpillars location in Elmhurst Illinois for removal off the 
truck by others  
• Removal of the existing concrete supports that are under the existing generator  
• Furnish and install a new rebar enforced concrete pad, 6” tick to match the footprint of the new generator (4” 
added around all sides)  
• Install of (1) new generator, size as indicated in the documents sent to HEC, includes crane to off load from the 
delivery truck 
• Furnish and install new radiator duct work, including vibration isolator  
• Install new diesel fuel day tank in new location (location within the existing generator room)  
• Furnish and install new fuel piping from the new day tank location to the new generator  
• Install new muffler 
• Furnish and install new exhaust piping, along with wall penetrations with escutcheons (flexible pipe for 
connection to engine by others)  
• Furnish and install exhaust insulation over new exhaust work  
• Furnish and install new overhead feeder conduit and cable to new generator location from existing automatic 
transfer switch. (Note: all conduit to be RMC as per the building standards)  
• Furnish and install new overhead shore power, control, AC/DC conduit and cable to new generator location from 
existing electrical room.  
• Furnish and install electrical connections as required for the operation of the new generator  
• Provide startup assistance, including load bank assistance  
• Removal of temporary generator cabling once the new unit is up and running. 

EXCLUSIONS:  
• Providing of engineered plan set if required  
• Diesel fuel  
• Sales tax, permit fees, performance & payment bonds  
• Utility costs and fees  
• Dumpsters & disposal of demolished equipment unless otherwise noted in inclusions  
• Asphalt and concrete cutting, patching & replacement  
• Painting, landscape restoration  
• Installation of flow meters, valves, pressure switches or any other product that falls into the jurisdiction of a pipe 
fitter or a plumber, laborer, millwright or any trade outside of an electrician  
• Temporary electrical work & temporary electrical required for bypass pumping if applicable (other than 
connection of temporary generator as noted)  
• Premium time  
• Liquidated damages  
• Removal of door frames or doors.  
• Removal of concrete, block walls  
• Structural modifications or changes to the existing generator room  



  
 
 
 

Grayslake Oglesby Rockford Hammond
   
205 South Route 83 590 Mayer Street 5055 South Main St. 6400 Indianapolis Blvd. 
Grayslake, Illinois 60030 Oglesby, Illinois 61348 Rockford, Illinois 61102 Hammond, Indiana 46320 
847.548.1177 815.883.3336  815.965.8631  219.932.6600  
847.548.1166 fax 815.883.8043 fax 815.965.1179 fax 219.932.1121 fax 

5 

5 

Power Systems 
615 W. Lake Street 
Elmhurst, Illinois 60126 
630.530.2200 
630.530.0998 fax 
630.530.2218 service fax 
 

 
 
 
Technical Field Services to Include: 
Note: Field Services do not include fuel replenishment, videotaping, sound measurements, or city permits for load testing on 
site.   
 
Installation Audit:   
A pre-start audit is included and to be performed by a Patten Power Systems Project Engineer prior to dispatching our field 
service technician to perform the equipment start-up.  This will insure the equipment is installed per manufactures 
recommended practices and site work is complete.  One (1) day is allocated to this project.  These services are to be 
performed during normal business hours, Monday through Friday 7:30 am to 3:30 pm. Additionally, our local project 
managers are available for consult during the entire life of the project 
 
Equipment Start-up 
On-site start-up testing is included for only the equipment purchased through Patten Power Systems.  Time allowed for one 
factory certified technician is based on accessibility, site preparation and safety concerns for both equipment and personal.  
This includes systems preparation, equipment start-up and functional operational test utilizing building load only.  These 
services are to be performed during normal business hours, Monday through Friday 7:30 am to 3:30 pm.  Addition personal 
required or revisits as dictated by the site, will require a written request for services with a change order by an authorized 
person and will be billed at prevailing rates. 
 
Equipment Load Bank Testing with Portable Load Bank 
Allocated for this project is a four (4) hour on-site load bank test utilizing a resistive load bank at 1.0 Power Factor.  Time 
allowed for 1 (one) factory certified technician is based on accessibility, site preparation and safety concerns for both 
equipment and personal.  Patten Power Systems will provide a portable load bank (sized to the generator rating) and 100 
feet of power cable.  Cable runs greater than 100 (one hundred) feet will be billed at prevailing rates.  These services are to 
be performed during normal business hours, Monday through Friday 7:30 am to 3:30 pm.  Addition personal required or 
revisits as dictated by the site, will require a written request for services with a change order by an authorized person and 
will be billed at prevailing rates. 
 
Training: 
The appropriate Patten personal will provide training on site after the unit has been commissioned and turned over to the 
owner.  Time allotted for this training has been set at 4 hours.  If more time is required, or additional sessions are required, 
arrangements can be negotiated. 
 
Warranty: 
Caterpillar two (2) year warranty applies unless extended service coverage is purchased.  Standard manufacturers warranty 
applies to all non-Caterpillar equipment.  Patten will administer all warranty claims during the appropriate warranty period.  
All other manufacturers warranty is for components only.  Labor associated with these claims will be charged accordingly.  
Copy of warranty statements will be provided at project submittal. 
 
Availability: 
Current availability 18-20 after release to production.  Equipment submittal time is to be negotiated. 
 
Financial Terms:  



  
 
 
 

Grayslake Oglesby Rockford Hammond
   
205 South Route 83 590 Mayer Street 5055 South Main St. 6400 Indianapolis Blvd. 
Grayslake, Illinois 60030 Oglesby, Illinois 61348 Rockford, Illinois 61102 Hammond, Indiana 46320 
847.548.1177 815.883.3336  815.965.8631  219.932.6600  
847.548.1166 fax 815.883.8043 fax 815.965.1179 fax 219.932.1121 fax 

6 

6 

Power Systems 
615 W. Lake Street 
Elmhurst, Illinois 60126 
630.530.2200 
630.530.0998 fax 
630.530.2218 service fax 
 

 
Net cash 30 days upon receipt of invoice, with credit approval.  Equipment will be invoiced at the contracted amount when 
ready for shipment. Retainers are not allowed unless previously negotiated and are identified in this proposal.  Late charges 
of 1-1/2% per month will be assessed for late payments and customer will also be responsible for any collection costs and 
expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees.  Equipment storage fees may apply when delivery is not accepted when 
ready for shipment. Sales tax is NOT included in the purchase price and will be charged at the current tax rate, if applicable. 
 
Additional Terms and Conditions: 
The scope of supply for this quotation is limited to the equipment and services listed in this proposal.  The customer is 
responsible for any and all installation of the above Equipment unless specifically modified by this proposal.  All equipment 
needed to perform any loading or unloading of the Equipment supplied by Patten Power Systems is the responsibility of the 
customer unless specifically modified by this proposal.  Unless specifically listed in our bill of material, equipment not 
indicated is to be supplied by others.  We reserve the right to correct any errors or omissions. Customer’s signature on this 
quotation or the issuance of a purchase order or other acknowledgement by customer for the Equipment shall constitute 
acceptance of this quotation subject only to the terms and conditions set forth herein notwithstanding any terms and 
conditions contained in any such purchase order or other acknowledgment or communication from the customer which are 
different from or in addition to the terms and conditions of this quotation.  This quotation is subject to any applicable 
manufacturer’s general terms and conditions of sale.  Changes to the terms of this quotation may only be made by the 
express written agreement of Patten Power Systems.  Patten Power Systems shall not be responsible for any consequential, 
special, indirect or liquidated damages hereunder or for any manufacturer or other delays beyond Patten’s control.  Patten 
Power Systems will not be responsible for any labor or material charges by others associated with the start-up and 
installation of this equipment unless previously agreed upon, in writing by Patten Power Systems.   This quotation expires in 
30 calendar days or sooner with notice and is subject to prior sale.  The prices stated herein are subject to any manufacturer 
increases if the order is not released for manufacture within 90 calendar days from order date or, if drawings for approval 
are required, the drawings are not returned and released for manufacture within 30 calendar days of mailing date.  For any 
completed order, scheduled for shipment, that is held, delayed or rescheduled at the request of the Buyer, Seller may, at its 
sole option, ship to storage, invoice, and transfer title, all at the sole cost and risk of loss of the Buyer.  Buyer may terminate 
or cancel an order by written notice and upon payment of appropriate charges based upon a percentage of the quoted sales 
price at the stage of completion: 10% hold for approval status and 100% released for manufacture status. 
 



  
 
 
 

Grayslake Oglesby Rockford Hammond
   
205 South Route 83 590 Mayer Street 5055 South Main St. 6400 Indianapolis Blvd. 
Grayslake, Illinois 60030 Oglesby, Illinois 61348 Rockford, Illinois 61102 Hammond, Indiana 46320 
847.548.1177 815.883.3336  815.965.8631  219.932.6600  
847.548.1166 fax 815.883.8043 fax 815.965.1179 fax 219.932.1121 fax 

7 

7 

Power Systems 
615 W. Lake Street 
Elmhurst, Illinois 60126 
630.530.2200 
630.530.0998 fax 
630.530.2218 service fax 
 

 
Notes and Clarifications: 

 Quotation is based on information received during site walkthroughs with Matt Liewehr. If actual job site 
conditions/local codes require a change in BOM, all such changes will be quoted and billed accordingly. 

 Please note all work is quoted on standard time.  
 Permits and fees are not included. 

 
NJPA Pricing Breakdown: 
 

 

 Caterpillar C9, 250kW Generator………………………............................................. $  42,560.28 
 25-Gallon Day Tank & Exhaust Equipment…………………………………………. $    6,744.12 
 Resistive Load Bank Test (4 hours) & Startup.......……………………….................. 

o Fuel is not included 
$    5,096.46 

 Electrical Work/Generator Installation/Rigging & Freight……….………………….. $  96,002.35 
 Temporary Power Generator (1 month)……………………………………………… $    6,205.88 
 Project Management, Engineering, & On-Site Support…………………………….. $    4,257.88 

Total: $160,866.92 
 

ACCEPTANCE:                                                                     ALTORFER POWER SYSTEMS 
 

_________________________     _____________________________ 
Customer Signature      Roopali Singh 

Email: singhr@pattencat.com 
         Phone: 630-516-4425 

DATE:  ________________________    Mobile: 630-330-2238 
Sales Engineer, Electric Power Generation 

    
This information is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information 
that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  No waiver of applicable privilege and/or 
protection against disclosure is intended.  If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use of, 
dissemination, distribution or copy of this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you receive this communication in error, 
please notify us immediately by telephone so that we can arrange return of the original message to us at no cost to you. 







 

Agenda Item 

3.33 COW 

 

 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Committee of the Whole 
January 28, 2019 

 
Subject:  Out of Village Water Service Request for 23436 Elm Road 
 
Action Requested: 

Consideration of an Out of Village Water Service Request for 23436 
Elm Road (Mr. and Mrs. Rizvi – 23436 Elm Road) 

 
 
Originated By/Contact: 

 
 
Wally Dittrich, P.E., Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer
  

 
Referred To:  

 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 

 
Summary / Background: 
The Village received a request from a property owner of 23436 Elm Road to connect their 
home to the Village’s water system. The proposed connection will be for a single-family 
residence located at 23436 Elm Road. The attached map highlights the location of the 
property and utilities to connect to the home in the area. 
 
The property owner has submitted a signed and notarized  “Agreement to Provide Water Service” 
and the $150.00 filing fee. They have also filed an Unconditional Petition for Annexation as 
required by Section 8-2-3-1A-2 of the Village Code. A copy of the petition is attached. As a 
reminder, the Village Code states: 
 

“[t]he Village shall not be required to permit such annexation and may include 
conditions of annexation in any Annexation Agreement.” 

 
The Public Works Department has no objections to honoring the request for connection as 
the property already is connected to the Village’s sanitary sewer system. Should the Village 
Board wish to annex the property, staff will discuss with the petitioner their desire to move 
forward with their request and assist the petitioner through the permit process. 
 
The Village has an existing watermain directly east of the petitioner on Elm Rd which can 
serve this property.   
 
Budget Impact: N/A. 
  
Service Delivery Impact: N/A 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends acceptance and approval of the petition/agreement required to complete the 
water connections. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

 Location Map 
 Petition of Annexation 
 Water Service Agreement 
 Site Plans 

   
   



 

Agenda Item 

3.33 COW 

 

 
Meeting History 

Village Board (COW): January 28, 2019 
  
 



-.

S

• •: •

-ç

— S

H

- 4_-•

‘I

a

er U

1



AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE

WATER SUPPLY SERVICE

THIS AGREEMENT (sometimes hereinafter referred to as “the AGREEMENT”) dated the I I ~

day of ja41 , 2OJ~, and approved by the Village Board on the _______ day of

____________ 20_ by and between: The Village of Lincolnshire, a municipal corporation of

the County of Lake, State of Illinois (sometimes hereinafter referred to as “the VILLAGE” and

~f Et ~tZ-\i , (sometimes hereinafter referred to as “the OWNER”):

WITN ESSETH:

WHEREAS, the VILLAGE currently operates and maintains a water main (sometimes

hereinafter referred to as “the MAIN”) located in the right-of-way or easement of (road)

~\O1~f~.j ELM I~oAt and

WHEREAS, OWNER is the legal title holder of certain real estate legally described on EXHIBIT

‘A’ attached hereto and made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein, (sometimes hereinafter

referred to as “the REAL ESTATE”) which real estate is located at

(address)239~G ~~i~Ei.M lP-~D , is adjacent to the LINE and MAIN, is not contiguous to
(≥Jf

the Village, and is not within the corporate limits of any other City or Village; and

WHEREAS, the REAL ESTATE is presently a Sti~J&LE FAMLL’-( 1+VM~ € ; and

WHEREAS, the (water service) to be constructed on the Real Estate is to be constructed



according to certain plans and specifications entitled ______________________________________

and dated _______________________, which plans and specifications are attached as EXHIBIT B,

and which plans and specifications have been inspected and approved by the Village; and

WHEREAS, the OWNER desires that the VILLAGE provide (water supply) to the REAL ESTATE to

such capacity and in such amounts as will adequately service the existing needs thereof for a

WHEREAS, the VILLAGE and OWNER determine it to be to their mutual advantage and to the

public interest that the REAL ESTATE be annexed to the VILLAGE; if in the sole discretion of the

VILLAGE, the VILLAGE elects to do so; and

WHEREAS, the VILLAGE, prior to providing (water supply service) to the REAL ESTATE, desires

to enter contractual agreements with the OWNER as to the terms and conditions under which

such service and supply will be commenced and maintained;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and in further consideration of

the mutual covenants, agreements and conditions herein contained, and other good and valid

consideration the parties hereto agree as follows;

1. Upon payment by the OWNER to the VILLAGE of the tap-in or connection charges in

existence at the time of the actual connection under the applicable provisions of the ordinances

of the VILLAGE, the VILLAGE will allow such tap-ins or connections to the LINE and MAIN as are

necessary to provide (water service) to the REAL ESTATE in accordance with the attached

EXHIBIT B.

2. Subsequent to such tap-ins or connections, the VILLAGE, subject to all rules, regulations

and ordinances of the VILLAGE, will provide (water supply service) to the REAL ESTATE to such



capacity and in such amounts as will adequately service the REAL ESTATE under its aforesaid

intended usage, provided however;

(A) That the improvements to be constructed pursuant to the aforesaid plans and

specifications are in no way to be changed, altered, varied or modified from the provisions of

said plans and specifications without the express written approval from the Mayor and Board of

Trustees.

(B) OWNER will pay all rates, fees and charges for such service and supply in effect for similar

service and supply at the time of such tap-ins or connections or which may thereafter from time

to time imposed therefore by the VILLAGE in accordance with normal Village procedures.

_(C) OWNER acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the VILLAGE shall be constructing a new

principal water main to provide water to the entire Village and that the Real Estate shall be

benefited by such water main in the same proportion as if the Real Estate were within the

Village; (ii) the VILLAGE may assess recapture fees or surcharges on the rates, fees and charges

for water service as is required and to the extent necessary to offset the cost to construct the

new principal water main; (iii) payment of such recapture fees or surcharges shall be a

condition of continued service; (iv) the recapture fees or surcharges levied against the Real

Estate, so long as it remains outside the boundaries of the Village, may be different from the

recapture fees or surcharges levied on property within the Village, provided that such

difference has a rational relationship to the sources of funding for the new water main; and (v)

the OWNER, for him or herself and all persons claiming by or through the OWNER, forever

waives and releases the VILLAGE from any challenge, objection or appeal of the “out-of Village”

recapture fees or surcharges assessed by the VILLAGE.



(D) Immediately upon receipt of a written request from the VILLAGE, signed by the Village

Mayor, the OWNER will execute and file with the VILLAGE, a petition requesting annexation to

the VILLAGE of the REAL ESTATE or any part thereof as may be so requested by the VILLAGE.

OWNER will execute such petition as the legal title holder of the REAL ESTATE and as elector

residing thereon, if such is the case.

In the event there are other electors residing upon the REAL ESTATE who are not parties to

this agreement, the OWNER will obtain the signatures of such electors upon the petition, if

requested to do so by the VILLAGE.

In the event, at the time such request is made by the VILLAGE, it is necessary to obtain the

signatures of persons other that the OWNER of the REAL ESTATE and the electors residing

thereon upon such petition, the OWNER will obtain such signatures if requested to do so by the

VILLAGE.

Such petition for annexation will be provided by the VILLAGE and will be in the form required

under the applicable laws of the State of Illinois.

Subject to the applicable laws of the State of Illinois, the VILLAGE will at its option annex the

REAL ESTATE within a reasonable time after the filing of the petition for annexation.

The OWNER will not annex the REAL ESTATE to any other municipality without the approval in

writing of the VILLAGE. Should such REAL ESTATE be annexed into another municipality, the

VILLAGE may, at its sole discretion, cause the (water supply service) to be disconnected.

(E) OWNER shall reimburse VILLAGE for, or directly and promptly pay, all expenses and costs

incurred by the VILLAGE in the preparation of this Agreement and in preparation of, or

adoption, recording and filing of any ordinances, petitions or notices required hereunder



including but not limited to: (1) Attorneys fees and expenses, (2) Surveyors fees and expenses,

(3) Recording fees, (4) Publication costs, (5) Engineering fees and expenses and (6) Planning

fees and expenses.

3. The use of the REAL ESTATE shall not change without the expressed written approval of the

VILLAGE as long as (water service service) is hence provided by the VILLAGE. If the use changes

without this expressed written consent, the VILLAGE may, at its sole discretion, cause the

(water supply service) to be disconnected.

4. This AGREEMENT and each and all of the covenants, obligations and conditions hereof,

shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, successors

and assigns of the OWNER and the successors in the office of the officers of the VILLAGE, and

any successor municipal corporation of the VILLAGE.

5. All notices given under this AGREEMENT shall be given in writing by depositing the same in

the United States Mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid, enclosed in an envelope

addressed to the party to be notified, as follows:

If to OWNER, to: ___________________________

(name)

(address)

If to VILLAGE, to: Village Manager, Village Hall



One Olde Half Day Road
Lincolnshire, IL 60069

Or to any other address that any of the respective parties may, in writing, indicate for such

party.

6. Failure of any party to the AGREEMENT to insist upon the strict and prompt performance to

the terms, covenants, agreements and conditions herein contained, or any of them, upon any

other party imposed, shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any

party’s right thereafter to enforce any such term, covenant, agreement or condition, but the

same shall continue in full force and effect.

7. This AGREEMENT sets forth all promises, inducements, agreements, condition or

understandings either oral or written, expressed or implied between them, other than are

herein set forth. No subsequent alteration, amendment, change or addition to the AGREEMENT

shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless reduced in writing and signed by them.

8. The submission of the AGREEMENT for examination does not constitute an offer to enter

into the AGREEMENT and this AGREEMENT becomes effective only upon execution thereof by

the parties hereto.

9. This AGREEMENT, upon signing by all parties hereto, shall be recorded by the VILLAGE in

the office of the Recorder of Deeds in Lake County, Illinois.

10. Annexation and Terms of Village Code Sections 8-2-3-1 and 8-2A-1

10.1 This Agreement shall not be valid unless the Owner has done the following:

(1) If the Property is contiguous to the Village, filed with the Village a fully

executed and unconditional Petition to Annex the property to the Village,

as approved by the Village Attorney.



4,

(2) If the Property is not contiguous to the Village, executed an Annexation

Agreement, approved by the Village, which shall contain, among other

matters, an agreement to file an unconditional Petition to Annex the

property to the Village as soon as the property becomes contiguous to

the Village.

10.2 Village Code Sections 8-2-3-1 and 8-2A-1 are made a part of this Agreement as

though fully set forth in this Agreement.

11. Application for Connect.

The Owner’s Application for Connection is attached to and made a part of this

Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed the

day and year first above written.

VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE

LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

By: ________________

Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________ OWNER(S)

Clerk



STATE OF ILLINOIS)

55.

COUNTY OF LAKE)

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, do hereby certify,

that ____________________________, personally known to me to be the same person whose

name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and

severally acknowledged that as such Owner, he signed and delivered the said instrument as

Ownerof said________________________

Given under my hand and seal this __________ day of ___________, 20.

Notary Public

Owner Signature (s)



PETITION FOR ANNEXATION

TO: The Mayor and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Lincolnshire
Lake County, Illinois

PETITIONER(S), ~z~v I

respectfully state(s) under oath:

1. PETITIONER(S) is/are the owner(s) of record of all of the land (hereinafter

sometimes referred to as the ‘SUBJECT PROPERTY”) comprising 46
acre(s) legally described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and

commonly known as 2 ‘~ 3, oI~T~ u~ Ro~, L j L £ ~

2. The SUBJECT PROPERTY is not situated within the limits of any municipality, and

is now, or will be at the time of annexation, contiguous to the Village of Lincolnshire.

3. At least 51% of electors residing on the SUBJECT PROPERTY joined in this

petition and have signed the petition.

4. This petition for annexation is filed with the Village Clerk of the Village of

Lincolnshire pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/7-1-8, and is filed by the PETITIONER(S) with full

knowledge that the Village of Lincolnshire has previously acted to annex the SUBJECT

PROPERTY pursuant to another section of the Illinois Municipal Code. Nevertheless, another

municipality is presently proceeding to attempt to annex the SUBJECT PROPERTY by

involuntary annexation pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/7-1-13, and PETITIONER(S) do not want to

waive their right to petition for voluntary annexation to the Village of Lincolnshire, the

municipality of their choice, between the date of notice of involuntary annexation and the

V:\PW\Out of Village\AnnexationPetition.doc





date of any action thereon by the other municipality, in order to ensure their annexation to the

Village of Lincoinshire in the event that the present attempt by the other municipality to

involuntarily annex the SUBJECT PROPERTY ever becomes relevant or operative.

The PETITIONER(S) respectfully request(s) that:

1. That the SUBJECT PROPERTY be annexed to the Village of Lincolnshire by

ordinance by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village of Lincoinshire, pursuant to 65

ILCS 5/7-1-8 of the Illinois Municipal Code of the State of Illinois as amended.

2. That such other action be taken as is appropriate on the premises.

Datedthis ) dayof ,20 _____

~

Signature ‘~

c~1E~ ~-~~Il\/i
(Print Name)

Signature

(Print Name)

Subscribed and sworn to upon oath before me, a Notary Public of the State of Illinois, by
the above signatories, this II day 20 / CY

“OFFICIAL SEAL” My Commission expires:~
CAROL LUSTIG

TARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
Commission Expires 07/13/2022

V:\PW\Out of Village\Annexation_Petition.doc






	2.1 01-14-2019 COW Minutes
	3.11_2019_01_28_COW_350_Knightsbridge_Hilton_PreEval_TextAmend
	2019_01_28_COW_350Knightsbridge_Hilton_PreEval_TextAmend
	2019_01_28_COW_350_Knightsbridge_Hilton_PreEval_TextAmend.pdf
	2019_01_16_HiltonHome2Suites_CoverLetter_v2
	2019_01_24_HiltonHome2Suites_Revised_Application
	2019_01_22_HiltonHome2Suites_SitePlan_v4
	Sheets and Views
	1-G1


	2019_01_22_HiltonHome2Suites_Landscape Plan_v2
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	code0611
	NWMC Parking Survey


	3.12_2019_01_28_COW_Zoning_Bulk_Regulations
	2019_01_28_COW_Zoning_Bulk_Regulations
	2019_01_28_COW_Zoning_Bulk_Regulations
	Bulk Regs
	2019_01_08_ZB_3.1_Bulk_Regulations.pdf (p.5-36)
	2019_01_08_ZB_3.1_Bulk_Regulations_Home&Lot_Size_Examples.pdf (p.5-8)
	2019_01_08_ZB_3.1_Bulk_Regulations_Findings_of_Fact.pdf (p.9)


	2018_01_08_ZB_Minutes_Unapproved


	3.31_COW_324G_Skid Steer
	3.32_COW_ESR_Generator_Replacement
	ADPF34D.tmp
	Engine
	Generator
	EMCP 4.2 Digital Control Panel
	Instrumentation
	Protection
	Controls
	Lube System
	 Lubricating oil and filter
	 Oil drain line with valve piped to edge of base
	 Fumes disposal piped to front of radiator
	Cooling System

	Mounting System
	Starting System
	Installation Audit:


	Equipment Start-up
	Equipment Load Bank Testing with Portable Load Bank



	3.33 ELM ROAD_OOV_Water_Service_Request

	Return to Agenda: 


